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QGMD company is a leading manufacturer of Medjical Devices in the Middle East.
Headquartered in Doha, Qatar, QGMD company boasts a state of the art production
facility designed by reputable innovative technology providers. QGMD has proved to
be a credible contender in the medical devices industyy where progressive healthcare
markets of uncompromising standards, such as Eutope, started to rely on QGMD
patient-centric products for superior quality. For thg same reasons, QGMD Devices
is realizing rapid growth of market share worldwide
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VISION

QGMD was set up with a vision to revolutionise international patient care safety standards around the world.

Through our innovation in every aspect of product development and disposal, our responsibility for the wellbeing
of healthcare personnel and our commitment to raising the quality of patient care - we are determined to
contribute back to our communities by raising awareness about healthcare safety where ever we are in the world.

@ QG 2023 Annual Report

MISSION

QGMD is striving to become a leading medical devices manufacturer in the healthcare industry worldwide,
by continuing to introduce innovative and superior medical devices which guarantee better patient care

e Tointroduce cutting edge solutions to the medical devices industry whereby Patient and Medical Staff
Care are the core of our innovation

e To provide the international health community with safe, effective, and efficient medical devices of
the highest quality.

e To reduce/eliminate (where possible) any potential risks associated with Medical Devices reuse and
accidental needle stick injuries.

e Continued R&D and investment to produce innovative medical devices for the benefit our patients and

medical staff, and the community as a whole
QG 2023 Annual Report @



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Ali Hassan lbrahim Ali Mr. Khalid Abdullah Al-Hitmi Mr. Mohammad
Al- Emadi Abdulrahman Fakhroo

Mr. Mohammed Mr. Mohammad Mr. Abdullah Hassan
Abdulmoneim Al Sayed Ali Al-Ansari Al-Obaidly
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@ QG 2023

ENVIRONMENT RESPONSIBILITY

QG has taken upon itself a social responsibility toward the Qatari society in the
matter of three important aspects, Environment, Health care and Education.

As for the environment, innovative solutions consider the importance
of health-care waste management as an integral part of the health-
care industry. Adequate waste management processes benefit
the community as a whole. On the other hand health care

is a priority for QG providing the international health
community with safe, effective, and efficient medical

devices of the highest quality.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Knowing the Qatar deserves the best in everything, QGMD is
committed to serve the Qatari society .

QGMD opens its doors to all students in Qatar universities to help
building the knowledge of the Qatari youth generations .

Every year QGMD accepts students studying in the biomedical,
medical, production engineering fields.

QGMD facility and its quality control lab. Serve as a training
environment for the promising students to fulfill their eager spirit .

QG 2023 Annual Report @




QGMD PLANT

As the Qatari German Company for Medical Devices
vision is reshaping the medical devices industry,
QGMD owns a state of the art facility . With its large-
scale 11 production lines, advanced sterilizers and
annual production Capacity of 496 million pieces ,
QGMD believes that Value-facturing is essential to
create a point of differentiation and a competitive edge
in this market.

Since 2007 The Qatari German) Company for Medical
Devices had a vision to assemble a world class team
in medical devices industry . QGMDtechnical teamis
supporting its strong portfolio, that allowed QGMD to
invade the world of medical industry with steady pace .

i

VALIDATION &
ACCREDITATIONS

Qatari German Company for Medical Devices (QG) is
certified for 1ISO 13485:2016; Quality Management
System Standard Requirements for Medical Devices,
1SO 9001:2015; the generic Quality Management
System Standards.

QGMD manufactures medical devices according to
established Quality Management System. All the
documentations, processes, procedures, instructions
and the records are reviewed by the Notified body
during the audit process to assess the adequacy and
caompliance. These certifications are subjected to
periodic audits and under the close monitering of the
Notified body. In addition, a trained team of internal
auditors are periodically reviewing the functions
of the Manufacturing, Quality Control, Material
& Resource Management and Training processes.
QGMD maintains and control system documentation
and records including those of product and process
conformity as required by the guality management
system.

All of QGMD products are certified for CE Mark in
compliance ta European Medical Device Directive
MDD/93/42/EEC including its amendments,

QGMD perform all of its operations in compliance with
GMP rules.

QGMD products registered and approved by Health
Authorities in various countries and the registrations
are maintained and renewed periodically.
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1. Optimized needle tipping technology
for low penstration force

2. Minimal discomfort
&

LATEX FREE 2. Latex free, pyrogen free, non-toxic

PYROGEN FREE
NONTOXIC

Material clarity assures clear scale to
ensure dosage control

Q-Safe Introduction

This patented product greatly contributes to enforcing
safety standards in the healthcare sector and total
reduction of any needle stick exposure. Additionally,
Q-Safe was cleverly designed with environmental
consideration.

. Optimized needle tipping technology for low penetration force

. Minimal discomfort
. Material clarity assures clear scale to ensure dosage control
e  Type Il reuse prevention features

. Reduced exposure to bare needle-stick

. Medical grade compatible with all medication (except para-aldehyde)

. Latex-free, pyrogen free, non toxic
. Reuse Prevention features

. Pack end lock for security

QG 2023 Annual Report

1. Medical grade compatible with all
medication fexcept Para aldehyde)

A\

Pack end lock for security

Reuse Prevention features

World Class Quallty

Q-Safe boasts to use the highest quality of needles
and optimized, automated tipping technology to
achieve the minimal needle penetration force possible.
Additionally, 100% online inspection of products in-
house as well as human interface.

OTHER BENEFITS OF Q SAFE

Reduced disposal content by approx. 40%

Biocompatible product compliant with
medical grade

Packaging designed to ensure fiber free
peeling

Optimized sterilization ensures glycol free
residue

1. Optimized needle tipping technology
for low penetration force

2. Minimal discomfort

LATEX FREE

PYROGEN FREE

NONTOXIC

1. Lower lock

2. Lowerslip

Semi safety features

Innowvated design ensure

* hetter plunger retention due to

excellent end lock

High clarity barrel with
perfect readable printed
scale

Q - JECT Introduction . World Class Quality

At QG we understand the importance of patients care
and how critical it is to provide accurate readings when
injecting medications. Q-Ject equips you with easy to
use syringe intended to minimize patient discomfort
and help you deliver the quality of care your patient
deserve.

. Optimized needle tipping technology for low penetration force

. Minimal discomfort
. Luer lock
. luerslip

. \nrhovatlsd design ensure better plunger retention dew to excellent

end loc
. Semi safety features

. High clarity barrel with perfect readable printed scale

Q-Ject is made from the highest quality raw materials
and undergoes 100% automated online inspection
throughout the manufacturing process.

OTHER BENEFITS OF Q JECT

Biocompatible product compliant
with medical grade

Packaging designed to ensure fiber
free peeling

Optimized sterilization ensure
glycol free residue

QG 2023 Annual Report



LATEX FREE

PYROGEN FREE
NON TOXIC

¥

Qatimized tipping technology
achieving bonding force of needle
and minimal penetration force

Q-Need- Introduction

Q-Need is a high quality hypodemic needle with top
specifications and raw material to ensure the highest
levels of safety and efficiency of use for medical staff,
minimal discomfort for patients.

QG has developed this product with patient care and
comfort as the priority.

e Smoother insertion diameter
. Minimal discomfort

. Universal colored transparent Standard hub

Universal colored
transpal}'nt Standard hub

1. Smoother insertion diameter
2. Minimal discomfort

m orld Class Quality

Q- Need it features the ultra-sharp stainless steel
through its optimized autornated tipping technology
for minimal penetration force.

The highest contribution to preventing tissue injury,
and more commonly patient discomfort. Additionally,
the QG 100% automated online inspection using
cameras and sensors ensures total product quality.

OTHER BENEFITS OF Q NEED

Biocompatible product complaint
with medical grade

Packaging designed to ensure fiber

e  Optimized tipping technology achieving bonding force of needle free peeling

and minimal penetration force

QG 2023 Annual Report

Optimized sterilization ensures
glycol free residue
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1. QFlow offers
a non invasive
route of drug
delivery

2. Biggerinside
wall for better
flow

1. Minimized patient
discomfort and risk of
perforation

2. Minimal irritation and
risk of venaus vessel
inflammation

Q - Flow Introduction

Q- Flow range of single use intravenous cannula is a durable and
reliable medical device designed to accommodate all types of IV
therapy. Our Q-Flow production are designed with features and
functionality built around the patients and health providers needs
and safety.

. Safe Blood Stopper

e  Wings: Injection port and receiving end of the wing have 6% luer tapel
. Q Flow® offer a non-invasive route of drug delivery.

. Bigger inside wall for better flow

e  Universal Colour Coding

e Various sizes for all uses

e Instant confirmation of correct vascular access

. Avoids blood spillage

» Safe Blood
Stopper

Universal colour coding
Various sizes for all uses

Instant confirmation of correct vascular access

H LD e

Avoids blood spillage

World Class Quality

Q-Flow features the use of the highest
quality of raw material, sterilization and
packing processes.

OTHER BENEFITS OF Q FLOW

Biocompatible product complaint
with medical grade

Packaging designed to ensure fiber
free peeling

Optimized sterilization ensures
glycol free residue

QG 2023 Annual Report



QGMD TRADED
PRODUCTS

QGMD portfolio is expansive and diverse, representi.ng m nal companies with —
strong hold in biotechnology to provide insightful healthcare selutions to help medical
facilities operate more efficiently and effectively . Our main target is catering to a larger
need base of our customers in a professional way and Qur choices are selectively made to
support the mission of quality healthcare.

QGMD Provide sales and after sales support, maintenance and technical support for its
traded products.

In this field of specialty , QGMD is committed to bring reliable, long-lasting & quality
products from all over the world to cater the medical specialists in the area .

@ QG 2023 Annual Report

OUR BUSINESS

RESEARCH &
DEVELOPMENT
Ongoing client feedback
Manitor market trends

MEDICAL STAFF

Safety and needs

PATIENT CARE
QUALITY CENTRE OF

ASSURANCE
Ay INNOVATION  elt:3:1%e]:1R4

State of the Art
Facility & Operations experience in
medical devices
CORPORATE 5OCIAL
SPONSIBILITY

Considerations environment
. total healthcare ommunity
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ntroduction

Qatar German For Medical Devices Company (Q.P.S.C) is headquartered in Doha, Qatar.
QGMD uses its state-of-the-art production facility which has made them to be a credible
competitor in the medical devices industry where the progressive healthcare markets rely on
QGMD’s patient-centric products of superior guality.

This repart sets out the profile of the company's governance framework and continues with the
Qatart German far medical Devices company Adopting a framework that seeks full compliance
with regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors adopted a corporate governance framewaork, in which the Board of
Directors and its committees and the Executive Management Team manage the affairs of the
Qatari German for Medical Devices Company. The development of corporate governance
standards to achieve best governance practices is a priority of the Board of Directors and the
senior management of QGMD. The Campany continuously promotes and improves its
governance principles and structure for the benefit of its shareholders and current and
potential stakeholders.

Commitment to Comply with Corporate Governance

Qatari German For Medical Devices Company (Q.P.5.C) comply with all relevant rules and
regulations issued by the Qatar Financial Markets Authority (“QFMA” or the “Authority”)
including the Governance Code for Companies and Lega! Entities Listed in the Main Market.

Corporate Governance Achievements for the Year Ended 31 December
2022

The Qatari German for Medical Devices Company has developed and commenced several
initiatives to comply with the new requirements of the Qatar Financial Markets Authority in
relation to adopting and implementing the new regulatory developments, including but not
limited to the following:

e Continued to enhance its Corporate Governance Framework with the aim of
achieving full compliance with the Cade.

¢ The company has a corporate governance policy developed in line with the hest
standards of corporate governance.




e Asa result of the company’'s compliance with the principles of the governance
Framewaork, the company did not receive any warnings or penalties during the year
2023,

Board of Directors

Board Membars

¢ The Board of Directors currently consists of 6 members originally elected for the
period 2021-2024, whereas per the Article of Association the members can be re-
elected through the General Assembly secret voting.

~o Asperthe company’s Article of Association (Article 24), the Board of Directors shall
" consist of 7 members, however in the case of vacancy within the Board, it can
continue its work with a minimum of 5 members as per {Article 29).

e As per the company’s Article of Assoctation (Article 24) have been amended , to
achieve eguality between the rights of shareholders without preference, and if the
Government cantributes to the company, instead of participating in electing members
of the board of directors, it may assign representatives in the board in proportion to
the shares it owns and their number is deducted from the total members of the board
of Directors.

e The Independent Members currently represent third of the Board, and all of them are
Non-Executive members in compliance with (Article 6) of QFMA’s Governance Code.

Mr. Ali Hassan ibrahim Ali Al- Emadi Himself Chairman - Independent Nan-Executive

Mr. Mohammed Abdulmaoneim Al Sayed Himsalf Vice Chairman - Independent Non-Executive

Mr. Mohammad Alj Al-Ansari Himself Managing Director - Executive
Independent

Mr. Khalid Abhduliah Al-Hitmi Himself Independent Memier Non-Executive

Mr. Mohammad Abdulrahman Fakhroo Himself Independent Member Non-Executive




Mr. Abdullah Hassan Al-Obaidly

Himself Independent Member Non-Executive

e The Table below table presents information about the current Board of Directors

Members (2021-2024):

Board Members Experience and membership on other boards

Director Name

Experience and membership on other boards

Mr. Ali Hassan Ibrahim Ali Al- Emadi

' Mohammed Abdulmoneim Al Sayed

* He currently works as a Chief Executive officer - Liberty
packing manufactures.

s Also Held the position of Sales and Business
Development Director -Mowasalat karwa .

e Previously as Taxi management Office Manager —
Mowasalat karwa
Operation Manager - Alijarah Holding
Member in the International Federation of public
Transport

e Holds Diplomat certificate from Swansea University —
United Kingdom

= Holds bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from
London South Bank university - United Kingdom

¢  Currently works in the Investment and Business
Development Department at Barzan Haldings

e Board member at Inma Haolding.

e Served as a Board member at Dlala Brokerage
Company

¢« Worked for Qatar Airways in the Financial and Treasury

Department

.« He holds a bachelor's degree in Business Management

and Accounting & Finance from Nottingham Trent
University — UK

¢ He also holds a Master’s degree in Managemeant and
International Business from Nottingham Trent University
- UK

Mr. Mohammad Ali Al-Ansari

* A businessman , currently holds the position of CEQ of
Qatar Industrial Foam and Furnishing Company (Qatar
Foam).

« He also holds the position of CEO of Ali Iskandar Al-Ansari
& Sons Company

+ He is the founder and CEQ of Venue Decorations
Company

+ Holds a Bachelor's degree in Business Administration from
the Arab Academy for Science Technology and Maritime
Transport




Mr. Khalid Abdullah Al-Hitmi ¢ Currently works as the CEO of Barwa Financial District
Company
s He also previously held the position of General Manager
of Barwa Village Company
e He also worked in the Engineering Affairs Department of
the Private Engineering Office
o Holds an MBA from HEC Paris
Mr. Mohammad Abdulrahman = Currently the Managing Director of Jewar Real Estate
Company
Fakita » He also held the position of CEQ of Tanween Company
¢ He also held the position of Executive Director in The
First Investor Campany
e He had gained his administrative and financial
experience when working as a financial consultant in
KPMG company
e Holds an MBA from HEC Paris
Mr. Abdullah Hassan Al-Obaidly = He worked as a project manager for the Al-SuhailSat-2
satellite in Japan
= He also holds a set of advanced courses in the field of
satellites and space sciences
= Holds a Bachelor's degree in Electrical, Communications
and Networks Engineering from the University of
Bedfordshire - United Kingdom

Board Meetings

e The Board held 6 meetings during 2023, complying with the minimum requirement of
QFMA’s Governance Code (Article14) and the Company’s Article of Association (Article
31). However, the company did not camply with Article 14 and 19 as the BOD convene a
succeeding meeting which lapsed more than three months.

e All Board meetings were attended of the majority of Members including the Chairman,
camplying with the Company’s Article of Association (Article 31) which states that the
Board Meeting shall be deemed valid if attended by at least half of the Board members,
under the condition that the number of attendees is not less than 3 members.

e Article 5 of the QFMA’s Governance Code highlighted that the Board member must be
qualified with sufficient knowledge of administrative matters and relevant experience
to perform its duties effectively and must devote enough time to do its job with
integrity and transparency to achieve the Company’s interest, goals and objectives.

e The Table below table presents the information about Board Meetings held in 2023:

Board Meetings |




Members Members

attended Absent
16 March 2023
2 7 May 2023 6 0
3 10 August 2023 ) 0
4 26 October 2023 4 2
5 13 November 2023 6 0
6 10 December 2023 ‘ 6 | 0

Changes in the Board’s directorships during 2022

No changes during the year 2023
Non-executive Board Members

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the majority of the Board members were
non-executive members. The Company applies the strict definition of “Nan-executive

Board member” according to the Code (¢ “Non-executive Board members are those who
are not performing executive management duties in the Company, whe are not dedicated full
time and whe do not receive monthly or yearly remuneration from the Company

Independence

The Company acknowledges that as per the corporate governance rules, at least one
third of the Board members are independent, and exerts its best effort to realize the
independence of one third of the Board members.

The current independent Board members are not under the influence of any factor
that limits their capacity to deliberate on

Company matters in an unbiased and objective manner based on known and existing
facts.

Prohibition of combining positions

The Board members will refrain from combining prohibited positions, in compliance
with Article 7 of the Code.

The Board members provide the Board secretary with an Independence and Conflict
of Interest Declaration annually, to declare whether they hold any legally prohibited
positions.




Board’s Role

The Board independently oversees the activities of the Company with the objective of
sustainable creation of value, considering the interests of the shareholders, its
employees and other stakehaolders.
The Board members act in good faith and in such a manner, as they reasonably believe,
to be in the best interests of the Company. The Directors also:
* Comply with all applicable laws, regulations, confidentiality obligations and other
corporate policies of the Company.
» Follow all policies, procedures and internal control systems of the Company.
» Act with honesty, good faith and in the best interests of the Company, and not in
the interest of the group it represents, or who voted for him.
The Board commits to complying with the principles of justice and equality among
stakehalders without discrimination. Among them on basis of race, gender and
religion; and transparency.

Board Duties

The Board independently manages the Company with the ohjective of sustainable
creation of value, considering the interests of the shareholders, its employees and
other stakeholders.

¢ The Board develops the Company’s strategy and ensures its implementation.

e The Board ensures that all provisions of law and the Company’s internal policies are
abided by and works to achieve their compliance by members of the Company
(compliance).

e The Board ensures appropriate risk management and risk controls within the
Company

» The Board advises regularly, and supervises, the Executive Management of the
Company and the General Managers. It must be involved in decisions of

fundamental importance to the Company.

e The Board is responsible for issuing and publishing the Board Charter as per the
requirement of the Code.

e The Board examines the efficiency of its activities on a regular basis.




e Indischarging their duties, the members of the Board act in good faith and exercise
the same care and diligence which an ordinary, prudent person would exercise in
taking care of his own money under similar circumstances, and reasonably act in
the best interest of the Company.

» Members of the Board take reasonable steps to be fully aware of all relevant issues,
including engaging in due diligence, and make informed and independent decisions
when voting on Company matters. The duty of care also requires the members of
the Board to take reasonable steps to moniter the Company’s Executive
Management and finances.

Board Members’ Duties

All Board members shall comply with the following duties:

e Attending meetings of the Board and committees regularly, and not withdrawing
from the Board.

e Ensuring that priority shall be given to the shareholders” interests over their own.

¢ Providingopinion on strategic matters, projectimplementation, staff accountability
systems, resources, key appointments, and operation standards.

e Monitoring the Company’s performance in realizing its agreed objectives and goals
and reviewing its performance reports including the Company’s annual, half yearly
and quarterly reports.

e Supervising the development of procedural rules for QGMD governance to ensure
their implementation in an optimal manner and in accordance with QFMA’s
requirements.

e Using their varied skills and experiences with diversified specialties and
qualifications through an effective and productive management of the Company,
and working to achieve the interests of QGMD, partners, shareholders, and other
stakeholders.

e [Effective participation in the Company’s general assemblies, and achieving its
members’ demands in a balanced and fair manner.

e Disclose financial and trade relations, and litigants, including the judicial, which may
impact negatively on carrying out the tasks and functions assigned to them.

The Board members, at the Company’s expense, may request an opinion of an
independent external consultant on issues relating to any of the Company’s affairs.

Board of Directors Evaluation:
The company shall perform an annual board of directors evaluation which includes




The main components of the BOD structure and its responsibilities, including the
composition of the BOD, the ease of access to information and their quality, the main
responsibilities and tasks of the board members, their relationship with the executive
management and also the performance of the board committees.

It also includes a section on evaluating the authorities and public information in terms
of their availability and effectiveness.

And another part about clarity of statements, meetings mechanism, professionality,
and commitment of members.

Remuneration
No Board renumeration During 2023

Chairman of the Board

Responsibilities

The Chairman is responsible for ensuring the proper functioning of the Board in an
appropriate and effective manner by ensuring that the Board discusses all the issues
presented to it in a timely manner and approving the agenda of every meeting of the
Board and taking into consideration matters proposed.

Duties

¢ The Chairman chairs the Board meetings, coordinates work within the Board and
attends to the affairs of the Board externally.

e The Chairman is responsible for calling Board meetings and approving their
agendas. This may be delegated by the Chairman to the Vice Chairman, a Board
Member but remains the Chairman’s ultimate responsibility.

e The Chairman of the Board shall regularly maintain contact with the Board, and
consult with them on strategy, business development and risk management of the
Campany. The Chairman of the Board will inform the Board without delay of
important events which are essential for the assessment of the situation and
development as well as for the management of the Company.

Board Secretary

The Board Secretary assists the Chairman and all Board members in conducting their
duties. His/her principal role is to advise the Board and the Chairman on governance
matters that have the potential to affect the Company’s operations whilst enhancing
the Board’s performance through the provision of impartial and relevant advice




regarding guidance on Board procedures, legal requirements and other areas of
corporate governance, along with developments in international best practice.
During the year 2023, Mr. Abdullah Fouad Dhamesh served as Board Secretary beside
being the investor relationship Officer. Mr. Abdullah has long experience in the field of
corporate accounting.

Board Committees

The Board forms committees with sufficient expertise. The committees serve to
increase the efficiency of the Board’s work and the handling of complex issues. The
nominated committee chairmen report regularly to the Board on the work of their
respective committees.

Executive Committee

e The executive Committee currently consists of 3 members, complying with the
minimum requirement of QFMA’s Governance Code (Article 18), elected by the Board
for the period 2021-2024.

e The executive Committee is Chaired by an independent member Mr. Mohammad
Abdulrahman Fakhroo, as highlighted in QFMA’s Governance Code (Article 18).

» The Table below table presents information about the current executive Committee Members

(2021-2024)

Representing Designation Executive/Non-

Executive

Mr. Mohammad Abdulrahman Fakhroo Himself Head of Committee Non-Executive
Mr. Mohammad Ali Al-Ansari Himself Member Executive
Mr. Abdullah Hassan Al-Obaidly Himself Member Non-Executive

The executive Committee held 1 meeting during 2023

The Table below table presents the information about executive Committee Meetings held in
2023:

Executive Committee meetings

Committee Members Members

Meeting Ref. attended Absent




Audit Committee

e The Audit Committee currently consists of 3 members, complying with the minimum
requirement of QFMA’s Governance Code (Article 18), elected by the Board for the
period 2021-2024.

o The Audit Committee is Chaired by an independent member Mr. Mohammad Abdul
Monem Al-Sayed, as highlighted in QFMA’s Gavernance Code (Article 18).

e The Table below table presents information about the current Audit Committee Members

(2021-2024)
Representing | Designation Executive/Non-
; Executive
Mr. Mohammad Abdul Monem Al-Sayed Himself Head of Committee Non-Executive
Mr. Mohammad Abdulrahman Fakhroo Himself Member Non-Executive
Mr. Mohammed Ali Al-Ansari Himself Member Executive

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2023, complying with the minimum requirement
of QFMA’s Governance Code (Article 19).

The Table below table presents the information about Audit Committee Meetings held in 2023:

Committee Members Members
Meeting Ref. attended Absent

1 16 March 2023 ' 3 0
2 07 May 5023 3 0
3 10 August 2023 3 0
4 26 October 2023 . 3 0

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
QGMD combined the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committees in one committee

called “Nomination and Remuneration Committee”.

The Audit Committee is Chaired by an independent member Mr. Khalid Abdullah Al-Hitmi
, as highlighted in QFMA’s Governance Code (Article 18).

The Table below table presents information about the current Nomination &
Remuneration Committee Members :




" Executive/Non-
| Exceutive

Nan-Executive

Mr.Abdu]IahHassaI~0baidy T HadofComItte

Mr. Motammad Abdulrahman Fakhroo Himself Member Nan-Executive

Mr. Mohammad Ali Al-Ansari Himself Member Executive

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee did not hald any meetings during 2023

Internal Control Systems

Internal control is integral to QGMD activities and helps to ensure attainment of the
Company’s objectives in terms of operationa! effectiveness and outcome, the reliability of
financial reporting and compliance with relevant laws and regulations,

The Board, Executive Management and other personnel ail carry responsibility to develop
and maintain sound internal control systems.

Risk Management

The reputation of QGMD relies on the company's ability to reduce risks through multiple
mechanisms to evaluate and address the potential risks.

The company ensures that the board of directors, its committees, executive management, its
representatives , and their employees focus Completely on the roles and responsibilities
assigned to them,

Board members and management implement all reasonahle measures to ensure that proper
policies, procedures, and systems are implemented to identify, measure, monitor, and report
risks, especially: market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and operational risk.

The company believes that training and awareness of the risk management entities is necessary
for all to instill a2 culture of risk management in the company, and to ensure that every board
member, executive director, director, or emplovee is able to manage potential risks in the
implementation of his / her tasks.

During 2023, the main risk factor facing the company was maintaining stable trading volume
during the financial recovery phase, for which the Finance Department and the Board of
Directors have developed recovery plans to mitigate the risks.

The company also took some risks to modify the sales policy, after analyzing the result of the
commitment compared to the amount of risk.

The risk register is reviewed annually to ensure that it includes all administrative, financial and
operational risks, and adhering to an integrated governance framework.

Internal Audit




Internal audit is an important management control tool, which provides the necessary level of
reasonable assurance related to the internal contral systems.

Internal audit is managed by AL Ansari Auditors , their team have with the relevant gualification
and experience in financial audit, performance assessment and risk management. QGMD
granted them access ta all Company departments.

The internal auditor submits to the Audit Committee a repart every quarter on the company's

internal control work.
The internal auditor has submitted periodic reports for discussion by the Audit Committee

External Audit

in accordance with Companies Law and QFMA regulations, the General Assembly of QGMD
appoints an external auditor upan the recommendation of the Audit Committee to the Board.
The external auditor is appointed on a rolling one-year basis, renewable for a similar period up
to a maximum of five consecutive years.

The external auditor appointed shall be registered on QFMA’s list of external auditers and
must comply with the highest professional standards. The external auditor shall be compietely
independent from the Company and its Board members and shall not have any conflicts of
interest in his/her relation te the Company.

The external auditor shail submit to the General Assembly the external audit report. The
auditor or his/her delegate must read the report before the General Assembly and answer the
shareholders’ questions.

The General Assembly Meeting held an 9% April, 2023 appointed Moore Stephens & partners .
for the First year, to audit QGMD’s accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Shareholders’ Rights

Shareholders’ rights are protected by the Companies law, the Articles of Association, the Board
Charter and the Code.

In accordance with the procedures described in the Articles of Association, the Company
makes available the following documents to the shareholders upen request:

+ Shareholders’ register

» Board member information {available on the website)

« Articles of Association

» Annual Report of the Board submitted to the General Assembly
» Any other decument submitted to the General Assembly

The company has established a mechanism for shareholders’ rights in the governance policy.
The company has also dedicated a link on its website for "investor relations", through which it




provides shareholders and other stakeholders information related to the company, The
infarmation is updated regularly to ensure shareholders receive the most recent information.

Non-shareholders rights
The company is committed to preserving and respecting the rights of stakeholders. Every
stakeholder in the caompany may request information relevant to his interest, provided that he
attaches to his request proof of his capacity. The company is committed to providing the
required information in a timely manner and to the extent that does not threaten the interests
of others or harm its interests.
In compliance with Article 38 of the Corporate Governance Law, the Board has established a
written mechanism within the Gavernance Procedures Manual. This mechanism specifies the
procedures far submitting stakeholders’ grievances against the decisions and actions of the
company's officials and its senior executive management, and anather for receiving and
examining their complaints, proposals, and reports regarding everything that affects the
company's interests and funds. This mechanism must stipuiate the confidentiality of the
-content of the complaint, proposal, or report, the protection of its submitter, and the
deadiines for deciding grievances and responding to compiaints and suggestions.

Canflict of Interest and Insider Trading

The Qatari German for Medical Devices Company has a well-established conflict of interest
policy that forms part of the governance policy framewaork

e Members of the Board and employees may not, in connection with their work, demand
nor accept third-party payments or other advantages for themseives or for any other
person or grant third parties” unlawful advantages.

» RMembers of the Board are bound by the company’s best interests. No member of the
Board may pursue personal interests in his/her decisions or use business opportunities
intended for the Company for himself/herself.

¢ The Board must disclose information relating ta insiders’ dealings related to the
Company without delay unless it is exempted from the disclosure requirement in an
individual case.

» All Board members and Executive Management and people who have access to the
Company’s financial results and obtain remuneration from the Company are prohibited
from trading in the company’s stock, as perthe QSE’s bylaws Article 173 which regulate
blackout periods.

e The blackout periods are as follows

o 1stand 3rd quarter: 1 week prior to the quarter-end until the disclosure date of
the financial statements

a  2nd quarter and year-end: between the period of calling the Board meating and
date of disclosure.




¢ The Board members shall sign an annual independence and conflict of interest
declaration form to confirm that they are responsible for disclosing to the Board any
conflicts of interest that exist or is likely to exist with QGMD and disclose their trading in
the Company’s securities as well as the trading of their spouses and minor children.

e The Board members completed and signed the independence and conflict of interest
declaration form for the year 2020.

List of Board Members’ Share ownership

Name ' Representing Designation - [ ghare

Oswnership

Mr. Ali Hassan Ibrahim Ali Al- Emadi Himself Chairman No shares

Mr. Mohammed Abdulmoneim Al Sayed alliECL Vice Chairman No shares
Mr. Mohammad Ali Al-Ansari Himself Managing Director  0.0000086%
Mr. Khalid Abdullah Al-Hitmi Himself Independent Member  (0.0000086%
Mr. Mohammad Abdulrahman Fakhroo Himself Independent Member  INo Shares
Mr. Abdullah Hassan Al-Obaidly LJSEl Independent Member |0.0000086%

Environmental Responsibility

The company is concerned with its environmental responsibility, as the raw plastic waste from
the production process is reused in manufacturing under quality control measures .

All the rejected waste paper during the production process was also recycled .

Social Responsibility

Out of the company's keenness on its positive community role, and its tireless support for the
local community and related communities, the company donated various medical and relief
materials through the Qatar Red Crescent for the benefit of the donation campaign for
.Palestine

Disputes and Lawsuit

IN Issuance of the ruling in Case No. 43/2023 / Primary / Investment / Banking and Finance /
Total / by the Investment and Trade Court filed by the plaintiff: Qatar Development Bank,
against the defendant (Qatari German Medical Supplies Company Q.P.S.C.), The court ruled
on12/27/2023:




First: In the original lawsuit: to oblige the defendant (Mrs. Qatari German Medical Supplies
Company Q.P.S.C.) to pay to the plaintiff ( Qatar Development Bank Q.P.S.C.) an amount of
one hundred and twenty-seven million six hundred and two. Eighty thousand eight hundred
and sixty-nine riyals and fifty-three dirhams (127,682,869.53) with an annual profit return of
5%, starting from 06/12/2023 until the date of full payment, obligating the defendant to pay
the expenses, and ordering expedited enforcement. With bail equal to the amount awarded,
the court rejected any requests greater than that

Second: In the subsidiary lawsuit: it was rejected and the plaintiff was obligated to pay the
expenses

The Qatari German for Medical Devices Company will initiate appeal procedures against the
ruling

Violations and penalties

There were no violations or penalties related to governance procedures during the year 2023

Transactions and dealings with related parties

During the year 2023, the company did not enter into any transactions or deals with any
related party, as the Board of Directors is very keen to disclose any delas that may involve a
conflict of interest or dealing with related parties

QGMD’s Capital

The current share capital for the company is QR 115,500,000 and the share price is QR (1). The
Company's capital structure is disclosed in the Company's financial statements as well as on
the Qatar Exchange website and the company's website.

In accordance with the company's Article of Association, the company's shareholding ceiling is
25% of the total number of shares. The company receives a monthly Shareholders register
from Qatar Central Securities Depository (QCSD). According to the information obtained from
QCSD on 31 December 2023, no shareholder exceeds the limit of 25%. The foreigners allowed
to own maximum up to 49% of the total shares of the company.

Ali Hassan Ibrahim Al-Emadi

el o T
‘ s

Chairman
Qatari German for Medical Devices Company
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders
Qatari German Company for Medical Devices Q.P.5.C,
Doha, State of Qatar

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualitied Opinion

We have audited the financial slatements of Qatari German Company for Medical Devices Q.P.S.C. (the
“Company”), which comprise the stalement of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the stalement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, stalement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matlers described in the Bases for Qualified Opinion section of our report,
the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position, financial
performance and its cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023 in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Bases for Qualificd Opinion

o With reference to Note 9 of the financial statements, as of 31 December 2023, the Company’s inventarics include
facemasks with carrying valuc of QR 7,923,536 which has been outstanding for more than onc ycar. The
management has not assessed the net realizable value of these balances under IAS 2 “Inventories”. Conscquently,
we were unable to determine whether any adjustments to these amounts were necessary.

Confirmations in respect of borrowings amounting to QR 127,132,816 from Qatar Development Bank have not
been received by us. In consequence, we were unable to carry out audit procedures necessary to obtain adequate
assurance regarding the full provision of liabilities, whether accruals or contingent at the end of the reporting year
(Note 26). We were unable to quantify the adjustments that would be required, had the confirmations from the
bank been received hy us.

We conducted our audil in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are furlher described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statemenis section
of our report. We are independent of the in accordance with the Iaternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountanis’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the other cthical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Company’s (inancial statements in the State of Qatar, and we have [ulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualitied opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 10 regarding the outstanding receivable amounting to QR 6,068,683 from third partics
which is outstanding for more than three years. The management is of the position that the balance is fully recoverable.

We draw attention to Note 16 (b) regarding the borrowings. During the year, Qatar Development Bank filed a lawsuit
against the Company, where the Supreme Judiciary Council - Investment and Trade court ruled to pay the plaintiff an
amount of one hundred and twenty-seven million six hundred and eighty-two thousand, eight hundred and seventy
riyals (QR: 127,682,870) with an annual profil return of 5% commencing from 12 June 2023 until the date of full
payiment,

Miristry of Lecnomy and industry No. 27 - Qatar Financio! Murkets Authority (QFAA Mo, - i2005) by pustae - oSyl Wil pae
CP Mo, ; 60004 - D Rinng Kood - Zone 44, Steeer 250 - Buillding 189 - 2 Floor, Ciioe 202 Maaore Stephens aond Partners - Centified Pubiie Accountonts
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Material Uncertainty Related ta GGoing Concern

We draw allention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which indicates that the Company's accumulated losses amounted to QR
122,425,204 as at 31 December 2023 exceeding 50% of the share capital of the Company, and its current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by QR 79,974,077 us of 31 December 2023, As stated in Note 1, these events or conditions, along with other matters
as set forth in Note 1, indicate that a matcrial uncerlainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Campany's ability lo confinue
as a going concern. The accompanying financial stalements have been prepared on a going concern basis which is dependent on
the sharcholder’s continuing financial support for the Company to meelt its financial obligations as they fall due. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this mattcr.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters arc thosc mallers that, in our professional judgement, wete of mast significance in our audit of the financial

statements of the current period. These maliers were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statcmenls as a whole,
and in forming our opinion therean, and we do nol provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matters
e  Valuation of buildings under property, plant and equipment and investment property

The Company’s statement of financial position as of 31
December 2023 includes property, plant and equipment of
bvok value amounting to QR 104,615,821 (2022: QR
106,451,000) and il represents 52% (2022: 54.8%) of the
Company’s total assets, The carrying value of buildings
under property, plant and cquipment amounting to QR
34,008,900 (2022: QR 35,694,600) represents 33% (2022:
34%) und machinery and equipment amounting to QR
69,536,262 (2022: QR 69,774,630) represents 66.5% (2022:
5.5%) of the tatal property, plant and equipment.
Investment properties in the statement of financial posilion
amounting to QR 12,484,000 (2022: QR 12,590,000)
represents 6.21% (2022: 6.49%) of the Company’s total
assets,

Estimating the fair value is a complex process involving
number of judgements and estimates including key
assumptions. Consequently, the valuation of the building
and investment property is considered as a key audit matter.

Qur audit procedures in this area included, among others:

e  Assessing the compctence, capabililies and
objectivity of the expert appointed by Ihe
managemeit.

e Agreeing the praperty information in the valualion
by tracing a sample of inputs to the underlying
property records Leld by the Company.

e Assessing the consistency of the valuation hasis and
appropriateness of the methodology used. based on
generally accepled valuation practices.

»  Evaluating the appropriateness of the assumptions
applied lo key inputs such as market prices, which
included comparing lhese inputs with externally
derived data as well as our own assessmenls based
on our knowledge of the Company and the industry.

Other Matter

The financial statements of Qatari German Company [or Medical Devices Q.P.S.C, for the year ended 31 December 2022 were
audiled by another auditor who expressed qualified opinion on those slatements on 16 March 2023.

Other Infarmation

The Board of Directors are responsible for other information. The other information comprises of Annual report for 2023, which
is expected to be made available to us after the date of auditor’s report. The other information does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s reporl thereon.

Our vpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of’ assurance or
conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statemenls, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears lo be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required (o report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Respansibilitics of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRSs, applicable provisions of Qatar Commercial Companies I.aw and the Company’s Atticles of Association and
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to cnable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporling process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finanecial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonahle assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are frec from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance wilh
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and arc
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these inancial statements.

As parl of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of malerial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due Lo [raud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulling from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the averride of internal control,

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order lo design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policics used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to cvenls or conditions that may cast
signiticant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw allention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going conceri.

e Evaluale the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presenlation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficicncics in internal control that we identify
during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, as required by the Qatar Commercial Companies Law, we report the following:

«  Weare also in the opinion that proper books of account were maintained by the Company and physical inventory
verification has been duly carried oul.

&  We obtained all the information and explanations which we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit
except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Bases for Qualified Opinion section of our repott.

= To the best of our knowledge and belicf and according to the information given to us except as mention helow,
no contraventions of the applicable provisions of Qatar Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s Articles
of Association were comniitted during the year which would materially aftect the Company’s financial position
and performance.

e The accumulated losses of the Company as at 31 December 2023 amounted to QR 122,425,204 contravening the
pr0v1510n of Qatar Commercial Companies Law. The said law states that should the Cnmpdny s losses exceed
0% of the share capital of thc Company, the shareholders should dissolve the Company or increase its capital.
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.S.C.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2023

Noie 2023 2022
QR QR

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 104,615,821 106,451,000
Right-of-use assets 4 69,698 78,991
Investment properties 7 12,484,000 12,590,000
Intangible assets 8 10,329,937 10,329,937
Total non-current assets 127,499,456 129,449 928
Current assets
Inventories 9 24,729,200 27,582,257
Trade and other reccivables 10 48,583,900 30,725,556
Cash and cash cquivalents 12 119,892 6,346,825
Total current assets 73,432,002 64,654,638
TOTAL ASSETS 200,932,448 194,104,566
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Sharc capital i3 115,500,000 115,500,000
Legul reserve 14 30,807,629 30,674,031
Revaluation reserve i3 12,151,865 11,910,929
Accumulated losses (122,425,204) (123,594,187)
TOTAL EQUITY 36,034,290 34,490,773
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilitics
Borrowings 16 10,568,075 92,488,710
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 7 860,526 955,097
Lease liabilities 6 62,488 71,705
Total non-current liabilitics 11,491,089 93,515,512
Current liabilities
Borrowings 16 131,718,670 52,373,230
Trade and other payables I 21,679,182 13,716,145
Lease liabilities (1] 9,217 8,906
Tatal current liabilities 153,407,069 606,098,281
TOTAL LIABILITIES 164,898,158 159,613,793
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 200,932,448 194,104,566

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 08 February 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

o m

i

Mr. Ali Hassan Al-Iimadi
Chairman of the Board of Dircctors

The attached notes from 1 to 32 are an integral part of these tinancial statements.

S

. li Al Ansari
einber Managing Director
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.S.C.

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR I.OSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023 2022

Note QR QR
Revenue 19 27.851,471 42,655,693
Costs of revenue 20 (18,660,448) (28,610,420)
Gross profit 9,191,023 14,045,273
Other income 21 2,981,136 2,519,918
Reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment 5 2,215,231 -
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5 (5,344,560) (5421,261)
Selling and distribution expenses 22 (398,560) (616,127)
General and administrative expenses 23 (4,553,475) (5,456,970)
Finance costs 24 (2,754,814) (3.826,736)
Net praofit before income tax 1,335,981 1,244,097
Income tax expense = =
Net profit for the year 1,335,981 1,244,097
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Gains on revaluation of buildings 5 240,936 616,645
Total other comprehensive income for the year 240,936 616,645
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,576,917 1,860,742

The attached notes from | {o 32 arc an inlegral part of these financial statements,
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.S.C.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2023 2022
Note QR QR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit for the year 1,335,981 1,244,097
Adjustiments for: -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ) 5,344,391 5,421,261
Impairment loss on investment property 7 106,000 -
Intcrest on lease liabilities i 2,621 2,922
Depreciation for right-of-use assets ] 9,293 9,294
Reversal of impairment of property, plant and equipment bt (2,215,231) -
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 17 45,589 198,876
Finance cosl 2,754,814 3,823,814
Operating cashtlow before movement in working capital 7,383,457 10,700,264
Changes in
Inventories 2,853,057 (517,363)
Trade and other receivables (17,858,344) (9.448,677)
Trade and other payables 7,963,037 2,019,430
Cash gencrated from operating activities 341,207 2,753,654
Employees’ end of service henefits paid 17 (140,160) (325,455)
Finance cosls paid (2,754,814) (1,351,202)
Social and sports fund contribution paid - (33,400) (29,521)
Net eash (used in)/generated from operating activities (2,587,167) 1,047,476
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
'urchase of property, plant and equipment 3 (1,053,044) ~ (251,728)
Net eash used in investing activities (1,053,044) (251,728)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net movement of horrowings (2,575,195) 370,642
Repuyment of lease liabilities 6 (11,527) (11,527)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities (2,586,722) 359,115
Nel (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (6,226,933) 1,154,863
Cush and cash equivalent as at beginning of the year 6,346,825 5,191,962
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 12 119,892 6,346,825

The attached notes from 1 to 32 are an integral part of these financial statements,
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.S.C,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

2.1

Legal status and principal aclivities

Qatari German for Medical Devices Company Q.P.S.C. {the “Company™) was established in the State of Qatar under commercial
registration sumber 23349, as Qatari Public Sharcholding Company. The Company was incorporated as a Qatari Public
Shureholding Company by virtue of Emiri Decree No. 39 issued on 13 October 2000 and wus publicly Hisied at Qatar Stock
Pxchange (the “QSE™) un 25 Murch 2002, The Company's registered office {s at P.O) Ilox 22556, Daha, Statc of Qatar.

The Company is engaged in the manufacture of single use disposable syringes and trading in medical equipment, tools and
supplies,

{zaing concern

The Company had accumulated bosses as at 31 December 2023 amounting to QR 122,425,204 und its ecurrent linbilities exceeded
its current asscts by QR 79,974,077 as at reporting date These events or conditions indicate that a marcrial uncertainly exists that
may cast significant doubt on the Company 's abilily 1o continue as a going conceen, However, fhe management strongly helicves
that the Company has the capability to continue in business for ut least the next twelve months from the reporting date and it has
the ability to settle its financial obligations when they fall duc as the Compuny hus a history of profits and continues to be
profitable, The Company confums it hias no intention to liquidate or ¢ease the operations of the Compuny for ut Jeast {he next
twelve months from the reporling date and it has future plans of borrowing additional funds, restructuring its debt and reduce or
delay its expenditures. ‘I'hercfore, these linanvial stalements continue to be prepared on a going concern basis,

Adoption of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (1FRSs)
New standards and amendments effective in the period on or afler L January 2023

The finuncial staterients liave been drawn np based an accounting standards, interpretations wid amendments effective at |
January 2023, The Company has adopted the following new and revised Standards and Intcrpretations issued by International
Acenunting Standards Bourd und the Iniernational Financial Reporting Interpretations Commitree, which weie cffective for the
current accounting perind:

w  Amendinents to IAS 12 Deferved Tux Related fo Assets and Linbiiities arising from a Single Transaction

This amendment requires the Company Lo recognise deferred tax assets and liabilities gross in relation ta their leases which
were previously these were recognised net. There is no impact on lhe amounis disclosed on the statement of financial
pusilion.

- Amendments to (AS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillew Two Madel Rules

This amendiment permits the Company to nat recopnise deferred lax assels und liabilities related to the Pillar Two tax
reforms. Due to the uncertain nature of the tax reformms, the Company cannot guaniify the inpuct fhni this has had on the
amaunt of Defurred tax assets and liabilities not recognised on the statement of financial position in the carrent perivd. No
amaunts were recognised in the prior period in relation fo the Pillar Two Model Rules, to which this amendment would

apply.
- IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 and December 2021 Amendments o IFRS 17)

IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recoguition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts and
supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts,

Howeyer, the Company does not liave any contracts that mest the definition of an insurance contracl under [FRS 17,

- Amendmenis to 145 1 Preseatarion of Vinancial Statements and IFRS Practive Stutement 2 Making Materiality Judgements-
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

1AS 1 replaces alf instances of he tenn *significant accounting policies” with *material accounting policy information, and
it clarifies that information is malcrial if, when considered wogethet with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, can reasonably influcnce decisions of primary users of financial statements.



QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.5.C.

NOTES TO TIHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023
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Adoption of new and revised international Financial Reporting Standards (1FRSs) (Continued)
New slandards and amendments effective in the period on ar atter 1 Jannary 2023 (Continued)

= Amendments to IAS 8 Acconnting Policies, Changes in Acvounting Estimates and Evrors  Definition of Avconnting
Estimartes

The Company has adopted the amendments to 1AS 8 for the first time In the current vear. The amendments rcplace the
definition of a change in avcounling eslinates with a definitiony of accounting estimates. Under the new definition,
accouting estimates arc “monctary amounts in (inuncial stalements thal are subject to measurement uncertainty™,

New standards and amendmoents issucd but not vet effective for year ended 31 December 2023

The Company has bot applied the helow new or amended standards and inlerpretations that have been issued by the JASB but
are not yet mandatory for the financial year ended 31 December 2023, The Company hus nol yel assessed (he impact of these
new or umended Accounting Standards and Interpretations.

< Amendmenis to 145 7 & IFRS 7 Supplier Financing Arvangemenis

This amendment will have no impact on the amounts recognised in the financial statements bul will require additions]
disclosures lu be provided around the Company’s use of supplier financing arrangemants. ‘This amendment will be cffcetive
for the 2024 Financial Stalemenls.

- Amendments to IAS 1 — Classification of Liabitities as Curvent or Non-current & Amendments tv IAS 1 - Non-curreni
Lictbilitiey with Covenants

‘These amendments togethwr impuact the classification of liabilities with covenants and any convertible notes that the
Company issues with fiability classificd conversion fentures, 16 may impact the classification of some of the Company’s
debts and will require additional disclosure ahaut the effect of the covenunts on the Compuny, The Company is still cucrently
ussessing the impoct of these amendments. They are effective for the 2024 Financial Statements.

- Amendment to IWRS 16 Leases—.ease Liahility in a Sale and Leaveback

IFRS 16 adds subsequent measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requiremenls in
IFRS 15 10 be accounled fur as a sale. The amendments require the seller-lessee to determine *lease payments’ or ‘reviscd
lease payments’ such that the scller-lessee does not recognise a gain or loss that relates to the right of use retained hy the
seller-lessee, after the commencement date. ‘Fhe amendments do not alfect the gain or loss recognised by the seller-lesses
relating to the paetial or full termination of a lease.

A scller-lessee aupplies the umendments reteospectively in accordance with IAS 8. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after | Tanuary 2024, earlier application is permitted.

Basis of preparation and material accounting palicies
Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Company have heen prepared in accordunee with IFRS issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), applicable provisions of Qatar Commercial Companics Law and the Compuny’s Articles of
Association, and the applicable provision of the Qatar Commercial Companies Law No. 11 af 20135 and subscquent amendments
by Law No. 8 of 2022. The managemenl is in the process of taking necessary actions needed to ensure full compliance with the
amended faw, including amending the Articles of Assaciation of the Company where necessary und bas concluded that the non-
compliance at reporting date daes not have material impact on the financial statcments of the Company.

The Ceropany's accumulated fosses as of 31 December 2023 exceeded 50% of the share capital. In accordunce with Qular
Commercinl Companies Law No. 11 of 2015 Article 295, the extraotdinary general assembly mecting held on 09 May 2023
resolved to continue the operation of the Company. The Board of Divectors will cafl the extraordinary general assembly meeting
to discuss the same for the year 2024,

The linanciaf statements have been prepared in Qatari Riyals (QR), which is the Company s [unctional and presenlation currency
and all Onaocial information has been rounded off to the nearest QR, uniess otherwise indicatcd.
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.5.C.

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

3.

3.1

32

Basis of preparation and material accounting policies (Continued)
Busis of preparation (Continued)
Basis of measurement

Tiese financial staternents have been prepared under the historical cost convention, exeepl [or lease liabilities which are
measured at (he present vatue of the lease payments discounted using the Company™s incremental borrowing rale of 3.5%,
investment property and building under properly, plant and equipment which have been measurad at fair valuc,

"T'he preparation of [inuacia! slaiements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimales. I
also requires management to exercisc ils judgement in the process of applying the accounting pelicies selcoted for use by
tle Company. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexily, or arens whers assumptions and estimates
are sigrificant o the linanciab statements are disclosed in relevant notes as summarized in nole 4, Use of available
information and application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates. Actuat ontcomces in the fulure could
differ from such estimates.

Material accounting policies

The principal accounting policies that have heen applicd consistently by the Company to all periads presented in these
financiat statements, are set out below.

Property, plant and equipment

ltems of properly, plaul ud equipment are measured ai cost less accumielated depreciation and acenm ulaled impairnent
lossas except for building on leasehold Jund and machinery and equipment which is measured ai tair value. Cost includes
expenditures that are directly attribustablc to the acquisition of the assel, The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cast
of materials and direct Ishour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assels to o working condition for their
inlended use, including the capitalised borrowing costs. Purchased software that is integral to {he funclienality of the refated
equipment is capitulised us parl of that equipment.

Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an ifem of property, plant and cquipmenl that is aveounted for separately is
capiralized and the carrying amount of the cumponent that is replaced is written off. Other subsequent expenditure is
capitalized only when it increases firure ceonomic benefits of the related item of property, plant and equipment. All other
expenditure is recognized in the income statement as the cxpense is incurred,

Aun item of property, plant and equipment is derceognized upon dispusul or when no future econowic benefits are expected
from ils use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derccognition of the assct is included in the income statement in the
vear the ussel is derecognized.

The building, machinery and equipment held for use in the Company's operations ure staed in the statement of financial
position al {heir revalued amounts, being the fair value at the date of revaluation, Icss any subsequent uccuinuiaied
depreciation and subscquenl accutnulated impairment losses, Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularily such
that the carrying amounts do not differ malerially from those that would be determined using fair values at the reporting
date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the tevaluation of such assets is recoguised in ather comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under revaluation surplus, cxcept to the eaent (hal it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same
ussel previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited (o profit or loss to the extent of the
deerease previously charged. A decrease in the cairying amount arising on the revaluation of such land and buildings is
charged to profit or loss to the cxlent it il exceeds the balance, if any, held in the property and equipment revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of thal ussel.

All othier fixed assets are caried ul cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, i any.

The carrying valucs of property, plunl and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may nol be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying
value of an asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amounl, the assel Is written down to its recovershle amount.

Dispreciation is recognised in income statermnent vn u straight line basis over the estimated usetil lives of sach component
of an item of property plant and equipment. 1and is not depreciated, Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
{ur the current and comparative years ave as follows!

Buildings on leaschold land 30 years
Machingty and equipment 25 years
Maodor vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fixiures 5 years
Computer and sofiwarc 3 years

Iepreciation methods, uselul lives and residual values are reviewed at each repotting date and adjusted it appropriate.
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.S.C.

NOTLES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KFOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

3.

3.2

Basis ot preparation and material accounting policivs (Continucd)
Materinl accounting policies

1.eazses

The Coenpany has kensed land from the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agriculture for a period of thirty ycars. Condracts
may contain both keuse and non-leuse components. The Company allocates the consideration in the contract to the leaze and
non-lease components based on thair relative stand-alone prives unless il has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single tease component.

T.eases are recognised as a right-of-usc asset and a corvesponding liability at the date at which the leased assot iz available
for use by the Company.

Leuse liubilitics include the net present value of the following lease payments:

» {ixed payments (including {n-substance tixed payments). less any lease incentives reccivable

¢ variable lease payment that are baged on an index or a rale, inilially meusured using the index or rate as at the
comniencement date
amounts expected to be payable by the Company under residuul value guarantees
the exercise prive of & purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term refleets the Company exercising thut eption.

I.case payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of' the fahility.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, I that rale canngl be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Company, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that
(e individual Jessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset ot similar vahuc to the right-ol-use
asset in & similar cconomie environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

The Company is exposed to potential firture increasss in variable lease puyments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or ratc take
effcet, the lease Habilily is reassessed gad adjusted ngainst the right-of-use asset,

Iease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce 2 constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for cach perivd.

Right-nfuusc asscts arc measured al cosl comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lcasc liability

any lease paymenls mude al ot before the commencement date less any lease incentives receivedd
auy initial direct costs, and

restaration costs,

. & 5 »

Right-nfouse asscts arc penerally depreciuled over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line
basis. I the Company is reasonably ccrtain to exereise s purchuse oplion, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s nseful life.

Paymenls associaled with short-tenm leases and of low-vatue assets are recognised on a straight-tine basis a3 an expensc in
profit ar foss,

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as reccivables al the amount of the Cumpany®s investment in
the relevant leases. Income (rom finance leases is allocated to accounting periods so as ta retlect a canstant periodic rate of
refirrn an the Company’s net investmenl oulstanding in respecl of the relevant feases.

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a |cssor is recognised inineome on u slraight-line basks over the
lease ters, Initial direct costs incurred in obraining an operating lease are added to the carrying amounl of the underlying
assct and recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets arc
included in the balance sheet based on their nature,




-NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

3.

3.2

Basis of preparvation and material accounting policies
Material accounting policies (Continned)
Investment property

Land held under vperating leases is classified and accounted for by the Company as investment property when the rest of
the definition of investimend pruperly is met

Investinent property, which is property held 1o earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, is slated ul its fair value at the
reporting dale. Gains v losses acising fiom changes in the fair value of investment property arc included in profil or loss
for the period in which they arisc.

An cxternal independent valuer, having appropriate recognised professional quakitications and current cxpericace of the
lacation and type of property heing valued, values the Company®s investment property annually. Fair values are based an
market values. Market values are the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of the valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an atm’s langth transaction afler proper markeling,

Where cuerenl prices cannot he cstablished by reference Lo an active market, valuations are prepared by considering the
aggregate of the estimated net cash flows to be reccived from renling the properly, A yield that recognises the specitic risks
inletent in the net cash flows is then applied to the nel annual rental cash flows to delermine the vatue,

Valuations reflect the type of occupicr and the generul perception of their likely oreditworthiness, the division of related
costs between landlord and tenant, the incidence of rent revicws and andicipaled revised rental levels, and the remaining
ceonomic life of the property.

Intangible assets

Intungible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Follewing initiaf recognition, intangible
asscts are curried ul cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumuiated impairment losscs.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful ceonoraic life and assessed for impattnent whenever there
i an indication 1hal the inlengible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with a finitc uscful file are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period and any change in estimate
is accounted for on progpective hasis.

Intangible asscts with indefinile useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impafrment annually. Gains or losscs arising
from derecognition of an intangible ussel are meuswred as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the separale stafement ol profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the
assel is derecognised.

Amortization is charged on intangible asscls su as o wrile off the cost or valuation of assets, ever their estimated useful
lives, on a straight-line basis. I ’stimated uscfil lives of intangible ussets for the current and comparative years are as follows:

Patent and know-how Indefinite useful life
Computer software 5

Barrowing costs capitalization

orrowing costs are finance cosl and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. A
qualitying assat for finance cost capitatization i an usset thak necessarily takes a substantial period of time to gel ready for ifs
intended use or sale. The Campany capitzbizes horrowing costs that are direetly atleibutable 1o the acquisition, constuction or
production of a qualifylng asset as part of the cost of that asset, 'I'ne Company recognizes olher borrowing cosis as an expense
in the period in which it ircurs them.

"The Coampany heping capilalizing borrowing cosls as part of the cost of a qualifying asset on the commencement date. ‘L he
commencament date Yor capitalization is the dele when the Company fitst mzets all of the following conditions:

i) Incurs expenditures for the asset;
i) Incurs borrowing cosls, and
i} Undertakes activitics thal sre necessury (o prepore the asset for its intended nse or sale.

‘I'e the extent that the Compuny borcows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying assct, the Company
determines the amount of borrowing custs ¢ligible [or capitalization as the actual borrowing costs incutted on that bor mwmg
during the period less any investment income on the emporary investment of those borrowings, if any.

‘I'ne barrowing cosls spplicable to the borrowings of the Cormpany that are outstanding during the pevind, other than those
specific borrowings mentioned ubove us made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualitied asset, are capitalized by
applying a capitalization rate 1o the expendilurcs on (hat ussel, The amount of borrowing costs that the Company capilatizes
during the period is not to exceed the amaunt of borrowing costs it incurred during that period.
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.5.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

3.

3.2

Basis of preparation and material accounting policics
Material accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs capitalization (Coplinued)

The Company suspends capitalization of borrowing costs during cxtended periods in which it suspends active develupment of
a qualifying asset, and ceases capitalizing borrowing costs when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
quaulifying asset for its intended use or sale are camplete.

Impairment af nan-financial assefs

Ad cach reporling duke, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets, to determine whether
theie is any indication that thosc asscls have sulfered wi impairent Joss, I any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to detcrminge the extent of the impairmenl loss (if any). Where H is nol possible fo
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset. the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unif to which the asset belongs.

If the recoverzhlc amount of an assct (or cash-generaling unit) is estimaded (o be less than s carrying amount, the carlying
amoutit of the asset {cash-penerating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impatrment loss Is recognised a5 an
expense inmediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amaunt, in which case the impairment koss is treated
us # revaluntion decrease. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses {except for goodwill), the carrying amount of
the assct {cash-generaling unil) is increused (o the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
careying amount does not exceed the carrying umount thal would have been determined bad no impaiement loss been
recognised for the asset (cash-penerating vnit) in priar years. A reversal of an impairment loss i3 recognised as income
immnediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal ot the impairment loss is
lreated as o revalualion increase,

Financial instrnments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial insttuments, other than derivative financial instruments, arc recognised on the Company s statemenl of ficuncial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual pravisions of the instriament,

I'inancial asscts that arc regutar way purchased or sold ure recognised using the lrade date accounting ie. that is when the
Company commits to pichase or sell.

Financial instruments that are not rade receivables are Initially measured at Fair value, which generally equates o acquisition
cosi, which includes transuclion costs [ur financial instruments not subsequently measured at fair value,

Trade receivables are recognised af transaction cost if they do not contain a significunt nancing element (IFRS 15),

Finaneial assels are derecognised when;
- 'The contractual rights to cash flows from the Onencial usset expire, oo
- the asset is transferred such that contractual riphts to cash flows of the asscts and the risks and rewards ol ownership are
trausferred,

On de-recognition, the Company recognised the differences belween currying smwounl and consideration.

In factoring arrangemenis and guaranteed receivables, transter may nat result in de-recognition, hocause the Company
retuins exposute 1o risks and rewards to some extent. The Company assesses iis extended involvement and recognises a
liability, such that the net of assct and liability represenis the rights and obligations relained, mensured based on the
classification of the original asset.

Financial labilities (or & part o} are derecognised when, and only when the obligation is extinguished — i.e. when the
ablipation specificd in the contract is discharged or cuncelled or expires. The gain or loss between the carrying value and
amaount paid is recognised in profil or loss.

Ef the terms of an existing financial liability {loans and borrowings) are substantially moditied this will be cansidered to
meel the criteria [or derevognition of the original lability, and a new financial liability is recognised,
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32 Maicrial acconnting poficies (Continued)
(lassification and subsequent measwrement of financial aysels

Measurement of financial assets depends on the classification, which is determined by the business mode] for holding the
ussel and chargcleristics of its cash flows.

i.  Amortised cost

Assets are held for he purposc of obtaining contractual cash flows, which are solely interest and principal, such as
vanilla debt instrvments, loans and raceivanles inchiding contract asscts. Interest is caleulated ustog effeclive interest
method and included in finance income in profit or loss. Impairment is presented in a scparate kine in profil or loss,

ii, Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCT)

If in addition i ubuve, il the business model also includes selling the assets, then these assets are measured at fair
value with changcg in FYOCL Inlerest income is caleulated aud presented as above. Impaimment is included in protit
or loss and reduces/ increases the fair value gain/ loss recognised in OCI reserve,

On derecognilion, gains and losses are recyeled to profit or loss and included in other gains/ losses.
iii. Fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL.)

Asscts that do nol meet the ¢riteria above are measured as FYTPL with changes in fair value presented in other gaing/
losses.

Far equity investments that the Company considers fo be long term strategic investments, the Company has laken Lhe
clection in IFRS 9 to present the changes in FVOCL Unlike ii) above however, on sale of investments, the cumulative
OC1 gain/ loss will be transferred within equity snd will not be recycled through profit or loss.

Dividends are recognised as other income when there is a right to receive payment.
Classification aind measurement of financiol Habifilivy

Debt and equity instruments are classifiad as either financiat liahtlitics or as cquily in aveerdance with (he substance ol the
conleaciual arrangement.

. linancial liabilitics

Financial Habilities are classified as either financial liabilitics at FVTPL or olher Onancial lizbitities, which are
reasured at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are classified at FVTPL. if they are either held for trading or they arc
otherwise designuled within this classification. Gains and losses on such financial liabilities are recognised within
ather gains and losses in the stalement of comprehensive income.

A financial fiability is classified as held for irading if' {a) it has heen acquircd principally for the purpuses of subsequent
short-teym repurchase; (b) oo initial recognition if is part of a portfolio aof identified financial instruments which havce
a pattern of short-lerm profit taking; or {¢) it is a derivative financial instrument that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrment.

A financial liability may otherwise be desipnated at 'V'I'CL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminutes or
reduces significantly a measurement or recogrition inconsisiency that would otherwise arisc; or (b} the financial
liability torms part of a Company of fnuncial ussels, fingnciad liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance
avaluatad on a fair value basis as a part of the Company *s documented risk management and investinent strategies; and
{c} it forms part of a contract containing one or mare embedded derivatives and the entire contrael can be so designuted
in uccordance with applicable financial reporting standards.

Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, oet of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured
al amortised cost using the effcetive interest method, with inderest expense recognised on an effective yield basis,
within finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Compuny derecognises financial Hiabilities when the obligations of the Company are discharged, cancelled or have
expired.
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Basis uf preparation and ntaterial accounting policies

Material acconnting policies (Conlinued)

Classification and meastrement of financial labilities (Contimted)

ii.  Embcedded derivatives
Derivatives cmbedded in other financial instrumends or nop-derivative host contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their risks and characteristics are not eloscly related do those ol st contracts and the host contracts are not
measured ai FVTPL.

However financial liabilities which contain multiple cabedded decivatives are not separated and are treated as FVTPL.,

Compound (inuneial instruments issued by the Company comprise canvertible foan nofes (hat cun be converted to shate
capital at the option of the holder, and (he number of shares to be issned does not vary with changes in their fair value,

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at the fair value of a similar liability that
docs ot have an equity convarsion option. The equity component is recognised itially at the difference between the fair
value of the compound [inancial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liahility component. Any directly aitributable
transaction casts are allocated to the liability und eguity components in proportion to their fnitial carrying amounts.
Subseqrient to initial recogaition, the liability component of a compound [inuncial instrument s measured at amortised cost
using {he elfective interest methad. The equity camponent of a compound financial instrumenl is not re-measursd
subsequent to initiaf recognilion except ou conversion or expiry.

The interest expense on the liahility component is caleulaled by upplying the effective interest method. This is obtained hy
caleulating the present value of tuture cash flows at a market rate for u lean without the convertible component.  The
difference between the effective interest rate and the interest paid is added to the carrying amount of ke convertible foan
note.

Interest, dividends, losses and gains relating to the financial liability are revognised in profit or loss. Distributions to the
equity holders are recognised in equity, net of attributable taxation,

Qffsetiing financial instrimens

Financial ussets and financial Habilities are offset and the net amount reported in the staternent of financial position only
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention o seltls on a nef basis,
or realise the assct and scitle the lisbility simultaneouslky.

Currently the Company does not offset financial asscts and financiad liabilities,

Impairment

The following assets have apecific characteristics for impuinment ¢esting:

Impairment of finenciaf assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Bxpected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets measurcd at amottized
cast.

T.oss ablowances for trade, retention and other receivables are ahways measured af un smount equak to lifetime ECLs.
The Company considers a tinancial assct to be in defaull when:
- Cuslosmer is unlikely to pay its credit ohligations to the Company in fulf, without recourse by the Company to actions
such as realizing seeurity (il any is held), or

- The financiat asset is more than 360 duys past due.

Impatretent of financial asseis

The Company considers bank balunves lo have low credit risk when its eredit risk rating s equivalent to the globally
understood definition of “investment grade’.

Lifetime 1iCLs are the BCLs that result from all possible default events nver the cxpected life of a fnanciad insteurnent.
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Basis of preparation and material aceounting policies
Maicrial acconnting policies (Continued)
Impairment (Continued)

Lrpntirment of finaneial assats (Continued)

12-month KCLs arc the porion of ECLs that result from default cvents that ave possible withing the 12 months after reporting
date (or a shovter period if the cxpecled life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual peried over which the Company is
exposed fo credit risk.

Mensurement of ECLs

ECLs arc a probability-weighted estimate of credit fosses, Credil losses are measured as the present value of all cush
shortfalls (i.c. the dilference between the cash flows dne to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Campany cxpects Lo receive). ECLs are disconnted at the effective interest rale of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired finuncial assets

At cucli reporting dats, the Company assesscs whether financial assets carried at amortized cast arc eredit impaired. A
financial assel is ‘credii-impaired’ when one or more cvents thal heve o detrimental impact on the estimated fisture cash
tflows of the financial assel lave occurred.

Evidence U a financial assef is credit-impaired includes the Tollowing observable data:

- Significant financial difficulty of the customer or issuer;

- @ breach of contract such as a default or being more than 360 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan of advance by the Company on (erms that the Company would not consider otherwise;
- it is probable thul (he customer will enter bankeuptey ar other financial rearganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for 4 security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the stalement of financial pasition

Loss alkawances for finunciul assets measured at amartized cost are deducded (rom the gross cavrying amount of the asscls.

Impairment losses related to financial assets arc presenled under net impairment (loss) / reversal an Tinancial ussels i ghe
income staternenl,

Weite-off

The gross carrying amounl ol a [inancial asset is written otf when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering
a financial asset in its entircly of & porlion thereof. The Company individuaily makes un assessment with respect to the
timing and amount of write-oft hased on whether there is a reasonable expectation ot recovery from ths amount swritten off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply wilh the
Company's procedures for recovery of amounts de.

Trade reecivables

Trade receivables arc amounts Jue from customers for merchandise sold or servives pecformed in the ordinary course of
business. Trade receivabics arc finuncial assets stated initiably at fair value which is wken to be their transaction cost and
subsequently at their amortised coat less any luss sllowance. Loss allowance is based on lifcliine expected credit fosses
gesess and determined at inilial recognition and subsequently adjusicd for uny changes in expectation.

Loss aflowuance measurement and pokicy inciuded in nole 10. Trade reccivables expected ta he reccived in the next yeur are
classificd as current assets. If not, they are presented as non~current sssets,

Inventorics

[nventorics are stated at the lnwer of cosl und net realizable value, Cost comprises dircct malerials und, where applicable,
dircct lubor costs and those overheads that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to their presenl lucation and
condition, cxeluding bortowing costs. Cost of the inventory iy delermined by the weightied average cost methods and
inclides invaiced cost und other expenditures incurred in bringing the inventoties to their present location and condition.
Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price loss all estimated costs of complelion and costs to be incurred in
warketing, selling and distribution. Costs of inventories inciude the transter from cquity of any going/losses on qualifying
vash Mow hedges relating to purchascs of raw malerials,
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Rasis of preparation and material accounting palicies

Material accounting policies (Cantinued)
Cash and cash aqunivalents

(:ash and cash cguivatents include notes and coins on hand, enrestricted balunces held with banks and highly liquid financial
assets with original maturities of three months or less that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in their fair vaiue,
and are used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash amd cash euuivalents are canied at
armortised cost in the statement of financial posilion,

Shareholdars’ equity

Share capital represents the total capital per commiereiul registration which is treated as equity. Hquity instrumenls are
measured al the Guir value of the cash or other resaurces received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the cquity
instruments.

Retained carnings include all accumulated profits ar losscs of the Compuny less any dividends, legal reserve and sacial and
sports fund.

Borrowings

After initial recognition at fair value nel of directly attributable transaction costs, interest bearing losns and borrowings ave
subsequently measured at amortized cast using lhe effective interest rate method. Ciains and tosses are recognised in the
statemenl of comprehensive income when the lizbilitics arc derceognised as well as through the effective interest rate method
amortization process.

Employees® end of service benefits

The end of service benefits o ils emplovees is in accordance with Qatar Labor Law, The entitiement to these beneflts is
based upon the employees’ final safury snd length of service. The expected costs of these benelits ure aecrued over the
period of employ ment.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past everd, il is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a retiable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to scttle the presenl obligation at the
slatement of financial position date, taking into uccount the risks and ancertainties surrounding the obligation. Where o
provision is mensured using the cash flows estimated to scitle the present ubligation, its cavrying amount is the present valuc
of thase cash flows,

When some or all of the economic benelits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered [ror o third party, the
receivuble is recognised as an asset it it is virtually certain that reimbursenient will be received and the amount ol he
reccivable cun be sneasured reHably.

Fair value measurements

Fair valug is the price that would be received to sckf an asscl or puid 10 transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction belween
markct participunts at the measurement date, regardless of whether thal price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technitue. When messuring fair value of an asset or liability, (he Company takes into account the
characteristics of the ascel ar liabikity if markel purticipants would take those characteristics into accounl when pricing the
assel or Hability at the measurement date.

The tair value measurements are categorized info Level 1, 2 ar 3 hased on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are ohscrvable and Ihe significance of the inputs fo the fair value measureinents in ifs entivety. which are
described as follows:

Level 1 inpuls are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idenlical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measuremend dule,
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Basis of preparation and material accounting policies
Material acceunting policies (Continued)

Fair value mensurements (Continued)

Level 2 inputs are inputs other (hun quoted prices included within Level 1 that are abscrvable for the assel or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inpts arc unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are ranstated Into the functional comency nsing the cxchiange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange pains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the lisnslation at
yeur-end exchange rates of monetary asscts and ligbilities denominated in foreign currencies ate recognized in the invome
statcment. The results and financial position of a1 Company cntilics thut have a functional currency diffevent from the
presentation curreney are ranslated into the presentation currency.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from coninct with custosiers

“Revenue from contract with customer” outlines u singhe comprebensive model of accounting for revenue arising fTom
contrucl wilh customers and snpersedes current revenue recognition guidance found across several Ntandards and
Interpretations within TFRS. It establishes a new five-step model that will apply 1o revenue arising from contract with
customers.

Step L: Identify the contract{s) with customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in the contract.

Step 3: Netermine the {ransuelion price.

Step 4: Allocate transaction price ta the performarnce obligation in the contract,

Step 5: Recognize revenue when {or as) the entity satisfics a performance obligation.

Sale of goods

‘the Company is engaged to manufacture single use of disposable syringes and trading medical equipment, tools and
supplies.

The Company's contracts with customers for the delivery of goods generally inclide anc performaunce ubligation. The
cumpany has concluded that the revenne from sale of govds should be recognised at the point in time when control of the
soods is Uransfeired to the customer, peneratly on delivery of the goods. The pormal credit term is 30 to 90 days upon
delivery.

Delivery occurs when the pands have been shipped to the specific location, the risks af loss have been lrunsferred to the
cuslomer, and either the oustomer has accepted the products i accordance with the contract, the acceptance provisions have
lapsed, o (he Company has objective evidence that all eritcria for uceeptance have been satisfied,

The Company considers whether there ave viher promises in the contract that ave separate performance obligalions o wh ich
a parlion of the transaction price needs to he allocaled (e, warranties). In determining the transaction pricc for the sale of
equipment, the Company considers the ettects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing companents,
pon-cash consideralion, and consideration payable to the customcr (if any), und exisience of significant financing
component.

nferest income

Inlergst is accrued on a time basis, by refercnee to the principal ousstanding and at the effective interest ratc applicable, which
is the rale that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's nct
carrying amounl.

Rental incose

Rental income from investment property is recopnised as revenuc on a straighl-line basis aver the tenm of the lease. Lease
incentives pranted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental incomc, over the Lerm of the lease. Rental income
from other property is recognised us otlier income.

‘I'he Campany has spplied IFRS 15 Revenve from Contracts with Customers (o allocate consideration in the contract io
cach lease and non-lease component.
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Rasis of preparation and material accounting policies (Continued)
Materinl accounting policies (Continued)
LRevenue recognilion (Confinued}

Cthers
Other income is recognized when carned, and on the accrual basis.

Cost and expense vecognition

Expenses are also recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when decrzuse in future
ceonomic benelit related to a decrease in an assct or an increase in a Liability that can be measured reliably has artsen.
lixpenscs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprebensive income on the basis of a dircct
assaciation between costs incurred and the earning of specific items of income; on [he basis of systematic and rational
allocation procedures when economic benc(its are expected to arise over several accounting ycurs and the association can
only be broadly or indirectly determincd; or immediately when an expenditure preduces no firture cconomic benelits or
when, and o (he extent that future ccanomic hencfits do not gualily, or cease to qualify, for recognition in the statement of
financial position as un assel.

Income tax

income tax is computed on the net protit adjusted for the tax purpuses in accordance with the provisions of Law no. 24 ol
2018 cancerning Quiari income tax.

Tax expense

Current and deferred toxes ate recognised as income or an expense and included In profit or loss for the period, cxcept fu
the extent that the tax arises [fom:

- A transaction or event which is recognised, in Lhe same or a different period, to other compretiensive incuine, or
« A husincss combination,

Current tax and deferred faxes arc charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relules (o items that are
credited or charged, in the same or a different peried, 1o other comprehensive incomme.

Current tax and defurmed taxes are charged or credited directly to oquity if the lux relates to items that are credited or charged,
in the same or a differcnt period, directly in equity.

Earnings per share

The Company presenls basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for ity ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calciilated by
dividing the prafit or loss attributable Lo ordinary shaveholders of the pavent by the weighled average number of ordinary
shares owtstanding during the period. Diluled EPS s determined by adjusting the profit or toss atiribulable to ordinary
shareholders and the weighted averane number of vrdinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive putential ordinary
sharcs, which comprise convertible notes and sharc aptions grauled to employees, if any.

Where the ettect of the assumed conversion of the convertible notes and the cxereise of ull vulstanding options have anti-
dilutive effect, basic and diluted EPS are staied at the same amount

Coatingent liabilities

A contingent lisbility is a possible obligation that arises from pasl events and whose existence will anly be confirmed by
the aceurrence or nom-occurrence of one of more uncertain fiture cvents not wholly within the control of the Company. 1t
can also be a present obligation arising from the past events that is not recogniscd because it is not probable that ontflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of abligation cannot be measured reliably.

Contingent liubilities are not recognised but are disclased in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an utllow ceours so that outflaw is probable, it will then be recogiised as provision,

Events after the reparting date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s [inancial pusition at reporting date (adjusting
events) ave reflected in the financiat statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting cvents are disclosed in the notes
{0 Ik financial statements when material,
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In prepuring the financial statements, management is required to inuke estimates and assunptions which affoet reported
income, cxpensey, assels, liabilities and disclosure of contingent asscts and Habililies. Use of available information and
application of judgement are inherent in the formation of estimates, together with past cxperience and expectations of future
events that are helieved 1o be rcasonuble under the circumstances. Actual results in the future could differ from such
eslimates.

Certain areas of financial slalements require management ta make judpements and eslimates in application of accounting
policies and measurement of reporled amounts, These are continuensty monitored for any [aclurs that would lead to a
change in assumption or lead to a different decision, Any changes in estimates are acconnted for prospeelively.

The estimates and assumplions that have a significant risk ot causing a material adjustment o the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the nexl financial year are noted below with reference to relovant noles conlaining further
gssessinent of the nature and impact of the assomplions,

In the pracess of applying the Company's aceounting palicies, management has made the following estimates judgments,
apart from those involving cslimations, which have the most significant effect an the amounls recognised in the financial
statomnents:

Satisfuction of performance ebligation

The Company is required to assess each of its contracts with customers ta determine whether pesformance obligations are
satisfled over time or at a point in time in order 1o determine appropriate method of veengnising revenuc. The Company hias
assessed that based on the contract, the Company docs ol ereale an asset with an alternative use 1o the Compuny, the
customer simullancously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Company
pevtarm and usually has an enforceable right to payment for performance compleled (o date. In these circumstances the
Company recognises revenue over lime and in other cases, revenue is recognised at # poinl In Lune.

Business model assessmens

Classification and meastrement of financiul assels depends on the results of the SPII and the busincss mudel test, The
Company determines the business model at a lovel that rellects bow Groups of financial assets are managed together
achicve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets s evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these arc managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Compuny monitors financial
assets measured at amostised cost or FVOCI that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their
disposal und whether the reasons ars consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring
is part of the Compaity’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets arc
held cantinucs to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a chnnge in business model and so a
praspective change to the classificution of those assets.

Significont increase in credit visk

1301, are measurcd as un wlfowance equal to 12-month ECL. for stage 1 assels, o lifetime ECL assets for stage 2 or stage 3
assets. An asset moves ta stape 2 when its credit risk has increased signiticantly since initial recognition, IFRS 9 does not
define what constitutes a significant incrcasc in credil risk. o assessing whether the credit risk of an assct has significantly
increased the Compaty takes inta account gualitative and quuntitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking
information.

The historical foss rates are adjustzd 1o reflect current and forward-looking intormation on macrocconomiv factors affecting
the ability of the customers to settle the roecivables. The Company has identified the GDI of the country in which it sells
its goods to be (he most relevant facror, and accordingly adjusts the historical luss rates based on expected changes in these
tactors.

Determining the lease term

In detcrmining (he lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to
exercise an extension oplion, or not exercise a termination option. Kxtension oplivns (or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lcasc term if (he lease is reasonably cerfain ta be extended (or not terminaled).

The keuse term is reassessed it an option is actually cxcreised (or not exercised) or the Company becomes obliged to exereise
(or not cxcrcise) it. The assessment of reasonahle certainty is only revised if a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances aceurs, which affects this assessment, and that is within the control ol Lhe lessee. During the current financial
vear, thers has heen no revision in the fease terms,
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4.

Critical aceonnting estimates and judgerients (Cunlinucd)
Going concern

The Company had accumulated losses of QR 122,425,204 and its current liahilities exceeded its current assels by QR
79.974 077 as at reporting date. ' hese events or condilions indicate that a material wacertainty exists that may cast sipnificant
doubl about on the Company’s ability to cantinuc as a going concern. However, he management strongly believes that the
Company has [he cupability to continue in business for at least next twelve months from Lhe reporliug date and it has the
ability settle its financial obligations when they fall dus as the Company has history of profits and continues lv be profitable.
The Company cantitms that it has no infenlion o liquidate or cease the operations of the Company for at fcast nexi lvelve
months from the reporting date and it has future plans of burrowing additional funds, restructuring jts debt and reduce or
detay its cxpenditurcs, Therefore, these financial statements continue to he preparcd on a going coneern basis,

Fair varlite measurement of fnvestment properties wrd properly, plant and equipment

I'he Company carries its investiient properties and building, machinery and cquipment under property, plant and equipment
at #air value, with changes in [air value being recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. The Compony engages
independent external valucrs to defermine the Gair value. The valuers used recognised valuation technigues such as markel
comparable approach.

Classification of invesiiments

Management decides an acquisition of an invesinent whether to ofassify it as financial asset at FVOCT or FYTPL. The
Company classifies investment as financiat assct at FVTPL il the investment is classified as held tor trading and upon initial
recognition it is designated by the Company as at 17V'1IP1.

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting cstimates ure recognised
in the period in which the cstimate is revised if the revision affects naly that periad or in the perind of the revision and
Tuture periods if the vevisions attect both cnrrent and fulure periods,

‘I'he sipnificanl munugement estimates and key assuraptions concerning the fulure and ather key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reparting date, that have a significant risk of causing material adjustment fo the carrying amounts of assels
and liabilities within the next firancial year are:

fwpairment of finuncial assels

The measurement of impairment tosses under IFRS 9 ucross relevaut financial assets requires judgement, in particular for
(he estimation of the amount and timing of fitture cash flows when determining impaitment fosses and the assessment nf'a
significunl increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by the outcome of modelled ECL scenarios and the relevaat
inpuits uscd.

The Company exercises its judzement in assessing whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk in rclation lo
u speeific counterpacty based on qualitative factors.

The Company also cxercises ils judgement in determining the relevant scenarios, the related weighl of each scenario and
the relevant macro-economic factors while calculating the ECL.

Trade receivables

The Compuny upplies the simplified approach to measwring expected credit losses to s trade receivables, which uses a
provision matrix. The provision rutes are based on days past due for Groupings of various cuslomer segments that
substantially share the samc risk characleristics or loss patterns. The provision rates are initially bascd on the Compuny’s
listorical observed defaull rates and adjusicd with current conditions and the Company's view of economic conditions over
the expeeted lives of the receivables. At each reporting date, the historical obscrved defuult rates ate updated and changes
in the forward-looking cslimales are analysed.

Cash ead bank bedances

Tipairment on cash and hank balances has been measurcd on ¢ [2-month expected foss basis and reflects the short maturitics
of the exposures, The Company considers that its cash and bank balances and resiricted grants have low credit risk based
on the extornal credit Tatings of the counterparties. While cash and hank halances arc also subject (o impairment, the
identitied impairment loss is considered inunaterial.



QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YYAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)
Usefud fives of property, planf and eqriipment and vight of use assers

The Company's management determines {he estimated useful Lives of its property, plant and equipment and right of usc
assets for caleulating depreciation and amortlisation, This estisnaie is delermined after considering the expected usage ot the
asset or physical wear and tear. Management revicws the residual value and usefuf lives snnually and future depreciation
charge would be udjusied where the management believes the usetu] lives differ from previous cstimates.

Use of incremental rate of borrowing

For measuring the lease liability, the Company discounted the lease payments based on its incremental rats of borrowing.
The definition of incremental borrowing rate states that the rate shauld refleet what the Company would be charged to
bortow over 4 similar lerin and uader similar civcumstances. To determine an appropriate rate, the Company hus obluined
the relevant information from its bankers,

Provision for stow moving inventaries

Inventorics zre held al the lower of cost or niet realisable value. When inventories become ald or obselote, an estimate is
made of their net realisable value. For individually significant ameunts this estimation is performed on an individual hasis.
Amounts which are not individuaily significant, but which are old ur obsolete, are assessed collectively and a provision
applied nccording to the inventory type and the degree of ageing or obsolescence,
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QATART GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

3. Property, piant and equipment (Continued)
a)  The properly, plant and equipment listed above were pledped against the louns und botrowings obtained by the Company.

b)  Buildings have heen construcled on a feasehold land obtained from Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Agricullure with an
annval fease rental of QR 11,527 for 30 years which will be expived on 30 June 2031 subject to renewal. "The right-of-usc assels
and lease liabilities velated to this tease contract arc disclosed in Nole 6.

Impairment of praperty, plant and equipment

The aceounting policy related to assessment of impairment has heen applicd each reporting period to estimate the recoverabls vahue
of entire class of properly, plant and equipment. As a result and as per management’s cstimations the recoverable value of the entire
class of property, plant and cquipmerd we higher than their carrying value as of reporting date.

In general, the recoverable vahue of machinery and cquipment is detennined based on external independent valuer. having appropriatc
rccognised professional qualifications and kaowledge of the regional market and understanding to undertake the vatuation of
machinery and cquipment.

During 2017, the independent appraizer’s cstimaled recoverable value of machinery and equipment is Jawer than its carrying value
by QR 6,603,312, Aceordingly, the amount was recognised a3 impuirmenl in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
incomge during the year 2017,

Based on the appraiser’s outcome of 2020, the carrying value of machinery and equipment has been increased to QR 75,792,341 und
which resulted to reverse the previously rccognised impairment loss of QR 4,388,081 during the vear ended 31 December 2020.

BBascd on the appraiser's outcame of 2022, the recoverable vaiue of machinery and cquipmenl smounting to QR 69,800,000 than
their carrving valucs as of reporting date {(which was not significantly deviated to reverse the previously recognised himpatrment

losses).

Based on (he appraiser’s outcome of 2023, the recaverable value of machinery und equipment has been inereased to QR 69,536,262,
which resitlted in reversal of ihe previously recognised impairment koss of QR 2,215,231 during the year caded 31 December 2023,

The accumulated impairment in relation to the machinery and eguipiment as follaws:

2023 2022
QR QR
As at | January 2,215,231 2,215,231
Additions during the year Q2.215231) -
As 31 Decentber i 2,215,231

6. Luases
1.ease represents {he discounted value of future lease payments for the teased land obtained [rom Ministry of Municipal Affairs and
Agriculture with an annual fcase renlul of QR 11,527 for 30 years which will be expired on 3{} Junc 2031 subjecl to renewal. Set
below are the carrying amoums of the Company’s right-of~use asset and lease labilities and the movements during the period.

The movemend uf lease at the end of each reporting period is as follows:

Rigiht-of-use usset

2023 2022

QR QR

As at 1 Janwary _ _ 116,164 116,164
Ag 31 December [16,t64 116,164
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

0.

Leases (Continued)

2023 2022
QR QR
Accumulated depreciation
As at 1 Janvary 37173 27,879
Charges [or the year (Ware 23) 4,293 9,294
As 31 December 46,466 37.173
Net boak value 69,698 73,901
Lease Hahilities
2023 2022
(4] QR
Asat | January 30,611 #9216
Interest expense for the year (Nofe 24) 2,621 2,922
Puyinents of lease liabilities {11,527) {11,527)
At M December A,705 Blal
1023 2022
QR OR
Net lease habilities:
Current portion 62,488 71,745
Non-current portion 9,217 8,906
71,705 80,611
Invesiment pruperiics
Tnvestment properlies ave measured at fair value and arc presenled as (ullows:
Building Total
QR QR
Buildmgs 12,590,000 12,590,000
Less: Impairmcht loss {1006,000) 5
12,484,000 12,590,000

At 31 Precember 2023

The Company’s investment propertics consist of a building constructed on the portion of leusehold land (63,779 square feet)
[ur (ke use of warchouse rented out to an cxternal parly based on an operating lease agreement, The rental income arising
from the ubove investment property amounting to QR 2,520,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023 {2022: QR 2,430,000}

includcd under olher income {(Note 21).

The [uir value of investment property as at 3 | December 2023 was determined by an external independent property valuer,
having (he appropriate recognised professional qualificalions and recent experience in the lncation aud calegory of the
property being valued, The fair vakue was determined bascd on markel comparable approach that reflects recent transaclion
prices for similar propetlics. In estimating the fair value ot investment properly, the highest and best us of property is their

current nse.
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.S.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

8. Intangible assets

2023 Iatents and Cumpuler

linow-haw software Tuotal

QR QR QR

Cost
Ac 1 January 2023 10,329,937 _ 596 04 11,925 981
At 31 December 2023 10,329,937 594,044 1092598
Accinulated amortisation
At b January 2023 L = 596,044 596,044
At 31 December 2023 _ = 596,044 _ 596,044
Net buok value
At 31 Becember 2023 19,329,937 o — 10,329,837
2022
Cast
At 1 lanuary 2022 _ 10,329,937 596,044 10,925,981
At 31 Decenber 2022 _ 10,329,937 596,044 10,925,98 I__
Accumuluted amortisation
At 1 Janugry 2022 596,044 396,044
At 31 December 2022 _ - 596,144 596,044
Net book valye
At 31 Decamnber 2022 B 14,329,937 - 10,329,937

The Company acquired the full rights for the use of the paients aed know-how without any limitations and the patents now
belong to the Company with full vights. lowever, defects (il any) un existing patent rights are being upgraded by the
mamgement (o meet overall objective of the Company.

a. Inventories
2023 2022
QR QR
Trading stocks 8,737,023 [1,651,577
Finished goods 2,886,793 2,557,230
Work in progress 2,428,434 1,093,470
Raw rulerials 8,401,22i 9. 128,148
Spare parts 2,593,036 2,579,318
Goods in {ransil 24,608 491,950
Consumables . ks 167,561 190,036
24,838,672 27,691,729
Less: Provision for ohsolcte and slow-maoving items (1119,472) (109,472)
24,729,200 27,582,257
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAT, STATEMENTS
FOR THE YFAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

10. Trade and other receivables
2023 2022
QR OR
Trade receivahlc* 49,344,995 32,173,793
Less: Impairment toss allowance on trade receivables _ (3.841,166) 3,841,166)
45,503,829 28,332,627
Advances to supplicrs 2,339,324 1,771,328
Staff receivables 281,234 55,776
Prepatd expenses 38,690 99,938
Refundahic deposits 1,153 1,153
Other receivables ) 419,670 464,734

48,583,900 30,725,556

*This account inchsdes outstanding reccivabbe from thind parlies amounting to QR 6,068,683 which is cutstanding for more
than three yews. The management is of the apinian that the halance is fully recoverable,

Mavement in impairment luss allowance on trade receivables is recoghized in the statement of financial pusition as follows;

2023 2022
QR QR
As at 1 January - 3841166 3811166

As 31 December J3.841,166 3,841,166

The fnllowing tablc provites information about the aging of trade receivahles from customcrs as at 31 December,

2023 2022
QR QR
Meither past duc nol irnpuired 7,375,796 22,501,710
1 - 20 days 9,162,413 1,124,292
41 - 180 days 4,777,258 950,371
Qver 18U days 28,029,523 1,597,420
Impaired (3,841,166) (3,841,166)
45,503,829 28,332,627
11. Related partics

Reluted parties represent the major shareholders, diractors and key munagement personnel of the Company and companies
in which they are major owners. Pricing policies and terms ot these transactions e upproved by {he Company s management.

a) Corapensation to key management persvnnel

There was no cortpensation paid to key management personnel [or the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: OR

600,000},
12. Cash and cash eguivalents

2023 2022
QR QR
Cash in hand 9,031 22,750
Bunk accounts _ 110,201 6,324,075
119,892 6,346,825

13. Share capital

Asat 31 December 2023 and 2022, the authorized shares of 115,500,000 at ()R 1 par valuc were issucd ard paid. The share
capital amounts to QR 115,000,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMRBER 2023

14.

16.

B)

Legal reserve

In aceordance with Qatar Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s articles of assaciation, the Company must tragsfer
10% of the annual net profit to a legal reserve uecount, The Company may resolve to discontinue the annuai transfers swhen
the reserve tofals 50% ot the share capital. 'The reserve is nul available for distribution except in the circumstances stipiated
[oy in the Comumercial Companies Law.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve amounting to QR 12,151,865 as al Decernber 2023 (2022: 11,510,929) relates to the revaluation of
building in previous years as owner-occupied building recopniscd in property, plant and cquipinent,

Movement in revaluation reserve is as follows:

2013 2022
QR QR
Az at 1 January 11,910,929 11,999,694
S*air valuc changes of properlies carried at fair value 244,936 616,645
‘Pransfor of depreciation of revalued assets = (705,410}
Asat 31 Decenber 12,151,865 11,910,928
Borrowings
2023 2022
Qit QR
Bunk facilities 140,305,641 142,502,361
Document credit facilities - 1,981,104 2,359,579
Total 142,286,745 144,861,940

Bank facilities

The Cowmpany obtained several bank Joans, documentary credit, everdraft und bunk, guarantees facilities from Qatar National
Bank and Qatar Development Barnk for the purpase ot warehouse constrisction and shoré-lerm working capital. The bank
facilitics had dilferenl rescheduling agreements during the previous years.

Details of bank facilities from Qatar Development Bank

The Company has obtained numetous facilities from Qatar Developmenl Bunk for different purposes such as to purchase
machineries and equipment, settiement of outstanding supphier ducs, mecting operationat and working capital requirements,
purchase of raw malerials, (o finance warehouse construction and purchase of medical supplies for resale.

Though the underlving facilities arc carried at dilferent maturily periods and supposed to settle in shorier period, ths facilities
have been rescheduled in previous years by Qatar Development Bunk frequently, Hence, during previous years, most of the
above louns huve been rescheduled with revised terms and conditions, owever, until 31 December 2020, [tuim the date when
the ahove development bunk disposed their ownership from the Company, the horeowings terms and conditions ure
generalized and the Company shall be obligated o pay the borrowings as and when they fall due.

The Company hes breached certain Ioan covenants which give the right v Qutar Development Bank to claim the full balance
from the Company. Accordingly, the Company has reclassified all the horrowings from Qatar Development Bunk wader
current liabilities as at 31 Dccember 2023.

During the year, Qatar Development Rank filed a fawsuit against (he Company, und ou 27 December 2023, the Supreme
Judiciary Council- Investiment and Trade court ruled to pay the plaintiff an amount of one hundred und weniy-seven nillion
six hundred and eighty-lwo thousand, eight hundred and seventy riyals (QR: 127,682,870} with an annual profit return of
5% commencing from 12 Junc 2023 until the date of full payment.

The Company has registered an appeal against the rfing and the proceedings are ungoing as of the year end.

‘I'ie facilitics are inilially given on a standalone basis and some of thetm ave rescheduled subsequently. The underlying lerms
and concitions attached to cach of the focilities are varied in tevns of purpose, interest rates and repayablc terma.
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16.

9

Burrowings (Continued)

Details ot eallateral provided against the facilities

Rased on the mortpaged contract with Qalar Development Bank (being a first beneficiary and major deht provider), the
Company’s trade pame, license, industrial registration, machinery and eyuipment including production lines, intangible assets
including intellectual properties owned hy the Company have heen pledged with Quiur Development Bank. The Company’s
industrial registration hus been notified to provide the ahove pledges.

Based on the mortgaged contract with Qatar National Bank (being a second beneficiary and a lender), the Company’s right-
t-use buildings, factory, machinery and equipment. tools, raw malerials, Ainished poods and other related assets including
license are pledged with the above commercial bank.

Inn addition to the above securities mentioned in the morigaged conlracl, pursuant to the Master Bank Faeility Agreement, the
Totluwing are also pledged against borrowings:

- Assipnment ol insurance policies covering 100% of eredit exposure tram Qatar Development Bunk

- Assipmment of certain customer contracts in favour of Qatar Development Rank to cover facility amoun,

The vetstanding borrowings are classified and presented in the statement of Hnuncial position as follows:

2023 2022
Ot QR
Current porlion 131,718679 32,373,230
Non-current postion 10,568,075 92 488,710
142,286,745 144,861,940

The movement of borrowings were as follows:
2023 2022
OR QR
As #l | January 144,861,940 127,749 460
Additions during the year 3200014 4,225,718
Restrecluring of bank overdraft 40,508 14,264,226
Repayments (7.446,709) (3,855,070)
Accrued interest 2,698,462 1,787.227
Interest paid ) (1,886,557) (1,314,615)
As at 31 December 142,286,745 144,861,540

During 2022, the bank overdrafl facility with Qatar National Bank for which the interest rate was 6.25%, wus couverted 1o
long term foan facility to be settled over 91 monthly instatments amoueting to QR 200,100 ending on 30 April 2030 and {inul
installment with the remaining halance to be scitled on 31 May 2030,

Provision for empleyces’ end of service benefits

2023 2022

OR an

Asaf I January 955,097 1,081,676
Provided during the year (Nefe 23) 45,580 198,874
Paid during the year N {140,161 {323,453)

As at 31 December 860,526 935097
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18.

19

Trade and other payables

2023 2022
QR OR
‘irade payables £9,961,999 9,856,165
Advances from customers 566,279 3,008,148
Accrued expenses 282,209 312,683
Dividends payuble 214,841 214,447
Retention payable 99,858 99,858
Provision [or leave salaties and airfare 74,1340 72,644
rovision for social and sports fund contribution 33,4010 31,102
Other payables 141,376 90.704
21,679,182 13,716,145
Itevenue
The following sers ot the disaggreaation of the Company’s revenue from CO1tracts with custoniers;
) Type of govds and services
2023 2022
QR QR
Sules of IV cannula 16,256,275 2,259,811
Sales of trading products 7,702,080 1,118,101
Sales of syringes 2,621.086 JR161.665
Saley of steriliztion products 1,109,892 210,780
Sules of packed needles 161,i32 300,139
Sales of others o 274,897
27,851,47) 42,655,693
by Thwming of saiigiaction of peiformaice obligation
23 2022
QR (9413
Goods transferred at point in time - ) 17,851,471 42 655 643
27,851,471 42,655,693
¢t Geographicul location
2023 2022
QR QR
Outside Qator 17,207,181 36,820,155
Inside Qatar 19,644,290 5,835,538
27858471 42,655,693
i Cusiomer veletionship
2423 20022
OR OR
Corporate customers 23,665,652 8,093,754
Govemnment customers _ 4,I85819 4,561,954
27,851,471 12,655,693
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20, Cost of revenne
2023 2022
OoRr QR
Cost of IV cannula 11,238,016 2.419.991
Cost of trading products 3,956,121 679,498
Cosl of syringes 3,249,945 25,260,928
Cost of packed needles 163,685 205,116
Othes 51,081 44,887
18,660,448 28,610,420
21. Gther tncame
2023 2022
QR QR
Rental income from investment prapetiies (Vote 7) 2,520,000 2,430,000
Write back of trade payablcs 172,778 -
Other income 288,358 89,918
2,981,136 2519918
22, Selling and distribufion expenses
2023 022
QR QR
Iixport shipping chuwges _ 398,564 616,127
23. Gencral and administrative expenses
2023 2032
QR QR
Salaries and other sttt related costs® 2,663,953 2,640 849
Legal and professional fees 75,953 647,067
Repair and impintenance expenses 332,128 220917
Insiranec cxpenses 105,125 [48.297
Rent expenses 200,442 -
Cemmunication expenses 189,403 47374
Adverlisement and marketing sxpenses 184,5%0 266,442
Impairment loss of investiient properties (Nere 7) 106,004 -
. Utilities 90,710 292 3497
Travelling expenses 85,381 180,399
: Office expenses 68,420 114,201
Foreign exchange losses 41,897 157,762
Depreciation of righl ol use assel (Note 6) 9,293 9,294
Others . 4 713971
4,553,475 5,456,970

* Salaries and other stalf related costs include QR 45,589 relating to provision for emphkeyees’ end of service benetits (2022
QR 198,876).
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QATARI GERMAN COMPANY FOR MEDICAL DEVICES Q.P.8.C.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2023

24.

23,

26.

27,

Finance costs

2023 2022

QR QR
Interest on Youns and borrowings 2,698,462 3,135,448
Interest on bank overdralt 651,780
Interest expense on feasc tabilitivs (Nofe 6) 2,621 2,922
Other finance charges 83,741 36,586
2,754,814 3,820,736

Basic earnings per share

Busic eartiings per share is calculated hy dividing the net profit for the year atwibutable to the owners of the Company by the
weiphted average number of ordinary outstanding shares during the year as Jollows:

2023 2022
O QR
Profit for the year attribuluble to the owners of the Campany (OR) _ 1,335,981 1,244,097
Weighted average number ol shares outstanding during the period {(Note 13) 115,500,000 ~ 115,500,000
Basic earnings per share (OR.) 0.m2 0.011
Contingent liabilities
2023 2022
R QR
Guarantees (a) 1,847,027 1,339,154
Guarantee cheques 1,153 30,000
Lelters ol credit (by _ 1,379,860 354,757
3,228,140 1923911

a) This represenls the financial guarantees issued hy the banks on behull of the Company in the ordinary caurse of the
huginess and will mature within twelve months from the reporting date.
b}  This represents the valuc of lclicrs of credit issued by a local bank ta overseas hanks for the purchase of raw materials.

linancial risk management

The Company has exposure fo the following risks from: ils use ol financial instruments:
Market risk
Credit risk
Liguidity risk
Capital risk

The board of directors has overa!l responsibilily for the estublishment awd oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The board has established a finance committce which iy responsible for developing and monitoring the
Company’s risk management strategy and policies. The committec reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities.
There have been no changes o the Compuny’s exposures to risk ot the methods nsed to measure und manage these risls
during the year.

The Company audit commitiee oversees how munugement monitors compliance with the Company’s risk manugersnt
policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk manugement ffamework in the light of the risks faced by the
Company.

The Company’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, short term investments, trade receivable und
puysble, borrowings and lease liabilities.

Marlket rvisk

Market risk is the risk (hat changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, equily price and interest rates will aftect
the Company’s income or the value of Us holding of financial instruments. T'hc objective ol market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposure wilhin acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.
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27,

Financial risk management (Continued)
Marlet risk (Continued)

Forelgn exchange risk

The Company undertakes certuin transactions denominated in forcipn carrencies and hence exposed to risk on cxchange rale
Mluctuations. The use of financial derivatives governed by the Company’s policies, which provide written principies on the
use of finuncial derivatives consistent with the Company’s risk management strategy. The Company does not use derivative
financial instrumnents for speculative purposes.

Interest rale risk managemen!

The Compaty is cxposed to interest rate risk us il borrows funds at both Tixed and floating inieresl raies. Management does
not hedge its intercst rate risk and believes that the intercst rate risk on its loans is minimal in the current business
environment.

Equity price visk
The Company has no listed cquily securities, thus, it is not susceptible to markel price risk avising from uncertaintics about
[uluge values of the investment sceuritics.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss ta the Compay i(a counterparty o a financial instrumenl [uils (o meet its contractual
obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influgnced mainly by the individual characterislics of each
counterparty.

Credit risk arises on frade receivabics and cash and cash equivalents.

The credit risk on hank halances is limited because the caunterpartics arc banks with high credit ratings assipned by
internalional credit-rating agencics. Bank bulances are held with reputed banks in and oulside Qntar. Given this, management
do not cxpeet Ihese banks to fail on their obligations.

Trade receivables have adopted the same simplified approach and loss aflowanec is calcululed based on lifetime expected
credit losses. Trade receivables are determined to have the same credit risk exposures as fundument(ally bascd on the same
customers.

To measure e expscted oredit losses, manageinent has used historic data % af settfed sales per days overdue. This data was
analysed further Lo create a profile by segment, region, product/ service offered and type of cuslomer.

The Company’s maximum cxpusure to credit risk as at the veporting dale is the catrying amount of its financial assets,
which are the following:

Gross carrying Loss Net carrying

12 month or life amount allowance amuunk

2023 time ECI. QR QR QR

Trade receivahles Lifetime ECL, 49,344,995 (3,841,160) 45,503,829

Balnnee with banks 12 Month ECL 110,261 _ = 110,261
222

Trade receivables Lifctime BECT. 32,173,793 (3.841,166) 28,332,627

Balance with banks 12 Month FCI, 6,324,075 _ - 6,324,075

Trade receivables

Lass rates are hased on actual credit luss experience over the tive years. These rutes are multipbied by farward lacking factors
(@ reflect difference between economic conditions during the period over which the histerical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Company’s view of ecanomic condition over the expected fives of the receivables.

Forward looking faclors are based on actuat and torecast macro-cconuinic tactors (primarily GINY and is considered 1o be
positive.

Balances with banks

None of the bank balances arc credil impaired and the expected credit fosses are insignificant.
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Finaneial risk management (Continued)
Lignidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will cocounler difficulty in meeting the obligations assaciated with ils finuneial
iahilitics that are settled by delivering cash or anather financiat assct. The Compuny’s approach to nanaging liguidity is to
ensure, as far as possihle, that it will have sufficlent liguidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normat and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

The table below summarizes the contractual undiscounted maturilies of the Company’s financial fiabilitics at the reporling
date. The Company’s financiat labilities include any contractual inleres( peyiments.

2023 Less than 12 More than 12
maonths months Total
OR QR OR
Bomowings 131,718,670 1,568,075 142,286,745
‘Itade and vllier payables 20,558,997 - 20,558,997
Lease liabilitics ) 9217 62,488 71705
2022 Less than 12 More than 12
months months Total
(R QR QR
Borrowings 52,373,230 092,488,710 144,861,940
Trade and other payubles 10,483,547 : 10,483,547
Lease Hahilities PR 8,908 71,7035 80,611

Capital risk management

The Company’s objective when managing capital is to ensure its ahility to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital
ratios in order (o support its business to provide returns for its shurcholders and to provide best returns on capital investment
by pricing goods and services commensuralely with the leve] of risk.

The Company sets the amount of capital funds in accordance with the planned level of operations and in proportion o the
levels of risk. The Company manages the sharcholder’s funds and malkes adjustments to it in the light of changes in cconornic
conditions and the risk chavacteristics of the underlving asscts. In order (o maintain or adjust the capitat stmeture, the
Company may adjust the umount of dividends paid to shareholder, return capital to sharcholder, issue new shares or realise
assets in order to reduce debl. The Company’s equity comprises share capital, lepal rescrve, revalvation reserve and
accumulated losses and is measured at QR 36,034,290 as at 31 December 2023 (2022 QR 34,490,773).

tair value measurcments

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hicrarchy for determining and disclosing the financial asscts hetd at FVTPL and biological
assets by following valuation techniquc:

level |: Quoled (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or Lubilites;

Level 2; Other Llechniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are ohservabic,
either directly ar indircetly; and

Level 3: Techniques which use inputs which have u significant effeet on the recorded fair vatue that arc not based on
observable market data.
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Fair value measurements (Centinued)

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of non-financial asscts, including their levels in the fair
value hierarchy. I¢ does not include tair valie informalion for financial assets and financial liabilities not nicasured al [niv
value, including trade receivables, bank balances, trade payables and borrowings, where the carrying amount is a reasonable
approximation of [uir value,

2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
QR QR QR OR

Nan-tinancial assets
Investment propetties 12,484,000 — 12,484,880 -
Nutidings on leuschold fand 34,008,900 34,008,900 -
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3
QR QR OR Qi

Non-financial assets
Investmenl propeities 12,590,000 — 12,390,000 -
Buildings an fcaschold lund 35,694,00 35,094,600 -

During the year ended to 31 December 2023, there were no transfers belween Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements,
and no transfors inlo and out of Level 3 fair value measurements. There were no movements within Level 3 fair value
Measuraments.

Social and speris fund

In avcurdance with Law No. 13 of 2008, the Company is required to provide a provision for the suppart of spurts, sovial,
cultural, and charitable activities with an amount equivalent to 2.5% of the annual net peofit, This social and sports
contribution is considered 23 an appropriution of retained carnings of the Campany and presented in the stalement of changes
in sharcholders equity.

Legal claims

During the year, Qatar Development Bank filed u fawsull against the Company, and on 27 December 2023, e Supreme
Judiciary Couvneil- Investinent and Trade court ruled to pay the plaintifl an amount of one hundred and nventy-seven million
six hundred and cighly-iwo thousand, eight hundred and seventy riyals (QR: 127,682,870) with an annual profit retarmn of
484 commencing from 12 June 2023 until the date of full payment.

The Company has registeted an appeal against the ruling and the proceedings are ongaing as of the year end.

Subsequent events

There were no significant events after the reparting date, which lave a bearing on these tinancial statements.
Comparative tigures

(ertain comparstive figures have been reclassitied to conform to Lbe presentation in the current year's £ nancial statcments.
lTowever, such reclussification does not have any effect on the net income, nel ussets and equity of the previous year.
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Independent Assurance Report to the Shareholders of Qatari German Company for Medical Devices Q.P.5.C. on the
suitability of the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting of
significant processes as of 31 December 2023 in connection with the Governance Code for Companies & Legal Entities
Listed on the Main Market Issued by the Qatar Financial Markets Authority’s (QFMA’s) Board pursuant to Decision
No. (5) 0f 2016

To the Shareholders of Qatari German Company for Medical Devices Q.P.S.C.
Doha — State of Qatar

Report on the Directors’ assessment of the suitability of the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal
controls over financial reporting of significant processes as of 31 December 2023 of Qatari German Company for Medical
Devices Q.P.S.C. hereinafter referred to as the “Company” in connection with the Governance Code for Companies & Legal
Entities Listed on the Main Market Issued by the Qatar Financial Markets Authority’s (QFMA’s) Board pursuant to Decision
No. (5) of 2016.

In accordance with the requirements of Article 24 of the Governance Code for Companies & Legal Entities Listed on the Main
Market Issued by the Qatar Financial Markets Authority (QFMA) Board pursuant to Decision No. (5) of 2016, we have carried
out a reasonable assurance engagement over the Management’s Internal Control Statement on assessment of suitability of the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting (Management
Internal Control Statement) as of 31 December 2023, based on the framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the Treadway Commission “COSO framework”.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with governance

The Board of Directors are responsible for implementing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate policies, and making accounting estimates and judgements that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Company’s assessment of its internal control system is presented by the Management to the Board of Directors in the form

of the Management’s Internal Control Statement contained in the Corporate Governance Report, which includes:

- the management’s assessment of the suitability of design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal control
framework over financial reporting;

- the description of the process and internal controls over financial reporting for the Significant Process of (general IT and
application controls, entity level controls, revenues, receivables, inventory management, fixed assets, treasury and cash
management, payroll, financial reporting and periodic closing of the financial records),

- the control objectives, including identifying the risks that threaten the achievement of the control objectives;

- designing, implementing and maintaining controls to achieve the stated control objectives; and

- identification of control gaps and failures; how they are remediated; and procedures set to prevent such failures or to close
control gaps.

Ministry of Econemy and industry No.: 27 - Qatar Financial Markets Authority (QFMA No.: 120189) O G guudae o a8 pliy il ) pa
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Independent Assurance Report to the Shareholders of Qatari German Company for Medical Devices Q.P.S.C. on the
suitability of the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting of
significant processes as of 31 December 2023 in connection with the Governance Code for Companies & Legal Entities
Listed on the Main Market Issued by the Qatar Financial Markets Authority’s (QFMA’s) Board pursuant to Decision
No. (5) of 2016 (continued)

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with governance (continued)

The Company has assessed the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of its internal control system as at 31
December 2023, based on the criteria established in the Internal Control-Integrated Framework 2013 issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO framework”). These responsibilities include the design
adequate internal financial controls that would ensure the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including:

— adherence to the Company’s policies;

— the safeguarding of its assets;

— the prevention and detection of frauds and errors;

— the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records;

— the timely preparation of reliable financial information; and

— compliance with applicable laws and regulations, including the QFMA’s law and relevant legislations and the Governance
Code for Companies & Legal Entities Listed on the Main Market issued by the QFMA’s Board pursuant to Decision No. (5) of
2016.

Responsibilities of the Assurance Practitioner

Express a reasonable assurance opinion on the fairness of the presentation of Management’s Internal Control Statement, based
on the criteria established in COSQ Framework, including its conclusion on the effectiveness of design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting of “Significant Processes” presented in the
Corporate Governance Report to achieve the related control objectives stated in that description based on our assurance
procedures.

Reporting on internal controls over financial reporting

We conducted our engagement in accordance with International Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
‘Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information’ issued by the International
Auditing and Assurance Standards Board (‘IAASB’). This standard requires that we plan and perform our procedures to obtain
reasonable assurance on the Management’s Internal Control Statement over assessment of suitability of the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls over financial reporting of significant processes
of (general IT and application controls, entity level controls, revenues, receivables, inventory management, fixed assets, treasury
and cash management, payroll, financial reporting and periodic closing of the financial records) in all material respects, to
achieve the related control objectives stated in the description of the relevant processes by management, based on the COSO
framework.

A process is considered significant if a misstatement due to fraud or error in the stream of transactions or financial statement
amount would reasonably be expected to impact the decisions of the users of financial statements. For the purpose of this
engagement, the processes that were determined as significant are: (revenues, receivables, inventory management, fixed assets,
treasury and cash management, payroll, financial reporting and periodic closing of the financial records).

Ministry of Econemy and Industry No.: 27 - Qatar Financial Markets Authority (QFMA No.:120189) O G pudae - alS 0y Sl sy
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Independent Assurance Report to the Shareholders of Qatari German Company for Medical Devices Q.P.S.C. on the
suitability of the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting of
significant processes as of 31 December 2023 in connection with the Governance Code for Companies & Legal Entities
Listed on the Main Market Issued by the Qatar Financial Markets Authority’s (QFMA’s) Board pursuant to Decision
No. (5) of 2016 (continued)

Reporting on internal controls over financial reporting (continued)

An assurance engagement of this type also includes evaluating Board of Directors’ assessment of the suitability of the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of the controls in an organization involves performing procedures to obtain evidence
about the suitability of design and operating effectiveness of the controls. Our procedures on internal controls over financial
reporting included:

- obtaining an understanding of internal controls over financial reporting for significant processes;

- assessing the risk that a material weakness exists; and

- testing and evaluating the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

In carrying out our engagement, we obtained understanding of the following components of the control system:
Control Environment

Risk Assessment

Control Activities

Information and Communication

Monitoring

ORI b B

The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
suitability of design and operating effectiveness, whether due to fraud or error. Our procedures also included assessing the risks
that the controls were not suitably designed or operating effectively to achieve the related control objectives stated in the
Corporate Governance Report. Our procedures included testing the operating effectiveness of those controls that we consider
necessary to provide reasonable assurance that the related control objectives stated in the Corporate Governance Report were
achieved.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our conclusion on the
Management’s Internal Control Statement over their assessment of the suitability of design and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal controls over financial reporting.

Our independence and quality management

In carrying out our work, we have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, which is founded on fundamental
principles of integrity, objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior and the
ethical requirements that are relevant in Qatar. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the (IESBA) Code.

Our firm applies International Standard on Quality Management 1 and accordingly maintains a comprehensive system of quality
management including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with ethical requirements, professional
standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
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Independent Assurance Report to the Shareholders of Qatari German Company for Medical Devices Q.P.S.C. on the
suitability of the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting of
significant processes as of 31 December 2023 in connection with the Governance Code for Companies & Legal Entities
Listed on the Main Market Issued by the Qatar Financial Markets Authority’s (QFMA’s) Board pursuant to Decision
No. (5) of 2016 (continued)

Meaning of internal controls over financial reporting

An entity’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards. An entity’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the entity;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards, and that receipts and expenditures of the entity are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of the management of the entity; and

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of
the entity’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent limitations

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting and compliance with relevant laws and
regulations, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Therefore, internal controls over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all
errors or omissions in processing or reporting transactions and consequently cannot provide absolute assurance that the control
objectives will be met. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Furthermore, the controls activities designed, implemented and operated as of 31 December 2023 covered by our assurance
report will not have retrospectively remedied any weaknesses or deficiencies that existed in relation to the internal controls over
the financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations prior to the date those controls were placed in
operation.

Other information

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Corporate Governance
Report but, does not include Management’s Internal Control Statement.

Our conclusion on the Management’s Internal Control Statement does not cover the other information and we do not, and will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. '

If, based on the work we have performed, on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

When we read the complete Corporate Governance Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and the QFMA.
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Independent Assurance Report to the Shareholders of Qatari German Company for Medical Devices Q.P.S.C. on the
suitability of the design, implementation and operating effectiveness of internal controls over financial reporting of
significant processes as of 31 December 2023 in connection with the Governance Code for Companies & Legal Entities
Listed on the Main Market Issued by the Qatar Financial Markets Authority’s (QFMA’s) Board pursuant to Decision
No. (5) 0of 2016 (continued)

Conclusion
Our conclusion has been formed on the basis of, and is subject to, the matters outlined in this report

In our opinion, the Directors’ ICFR Report forming part of the Annual Corporate Governance Report, fairly
states, in all material respects, based on the criteria established in the COSO Framework, that the Company's
internal control framework over financial reporting is currently under evaluation for both the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness stages as of 31 December 2023.

Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to the Management’s Internal Control Statement which concludes that the management was

unable to conclude about the adequacy of the design, implementation, and operating effectiveness of the
system of internal control over financial reporting. The management is currently in the process of conducting
an evaluation of the adequacy of the design, implementation and operational effectiveness of Internal Control
over Financial Reporting.
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